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This report covers Western 
Power’s financial performance, 
statutory obligations and 
organisational performance for 
the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 
2014. 

It reports on a broad range of business 
issues complementary to those 
defined in the Statement of Corporate 
Intent agreed annually with West 
Australia’s State Minister for Energy, 
consistent with the Electricity 
Corporations Act 2005 (WA) and the 
Electricity Industry Act 2004 (WA). 

The report conforms to ASIC’s RG 247 
standards which delivers guidance for 
Directors on provision of meaningful 
information to shareholders when 
preparing an operating and financial 
review in a Directors’ Report. 

The report aims to provide a snapshot 
of Western Power’s business, insight 
into its operating environment, key 
challenges, and a full account of its 
finances. All information provided, 
including data and statistics is at 30 
June 2014, unless stated otherwise.

To help us improve our corporate 
reporting, we invite your feedback via 
email to: 
comment@westernpower.com.au 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW
ABOUT THIS REPORT
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2013-14

Western Power continues to deliver improvements across a number of areas of the 
business. Our leading accomplishments in 2013-14 include:

Financial • Net profit after tax (NPAT) of $202.9 million, 6% higher than 
previous year

• Lower operating expenditure (excluding restructuring costs)  
of $27.4 million

• Capital investment of $1.18 billion, 12% higher than previous 
year (of which $645.3 million was financed by new borrowings), 
delivering to target and meeting the challenges set by the 
Economic Regulation Authority and State Government

• Increased borrowings by $645.3 million to $6.83 billion

$1.18 bn 
in capital 

investment

Safety • Continued to drive improvements in workforce safety

- Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate (TRIFR) was  
7.6 compared to our target of 9.0 

- Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) was 0.8 compared  
to our target of 1.8

0.8 
LTIFR  

ahead of target

Operations • Successful delivery of $1.427 billion annual works program  
in full

• Record number of wood poles treated, and  
exceeded targets delivered at budgeted unit rates 

• 91,352 wood poles treated – replacements up by 36%  
 – reinforcements up by 40%

• Successful and safe removal of more than 5,000km of 
streetlight switchwire from the network

• Upgraded 68,224 overhead customer service connections 

• No Type 1 compliance breaches recorded for the year 

$1.427 bn 
annual works 

program
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Customer • Managed over 900,000 calls through our customer call centre 

• Safely connected 29,532 new customers to the network 

• 78% of customers rated their experience as positive or neutral 

• Reduction in customer complaints by 17.6% and  
99.6% of complaints closed within 15 days

• Successful and safe restoration of electricity network damaged 
by storms in September 2013 with zero safety incidents to our 
work force

- Crews responded to more than 125 pole-related incidents 
and safely restored supply to the majority of customers 
within four days following significant damage to overhead 
network assets, affecting more than 63,000 customers over 
a two-day period 

• Successful and safe restoration of electricity network destroyed 
or damaged by Perth Hills fire in January 2014

- Crews restored power for customers – 155 poles and nearly 
nine kilometres of conductors replaced in less than one week

29,532  
new  

customers

78%  
positive  

customer 
response

Reliability • Number of power interruptions continued to be low at 2.45 
interruptions per customer on average, over 12 months

• Reliability performance of the network remained steady 
– achieving a supply availability of 99.93%

99.93%  
supply  

availability

People • Implementation of a new operating model to drive increased 
efficiency and a more accountable and responsive culture 

• Achieved fair and balanced outcomes for our employees, our 
company and the broader community through the successful 
negotiation of two Enterprise Agreements 

• Reduction in senior management: Executive – 9 to 7, Senior 
Leaders – 47 to 26 and Area Managers – down from 171 to 111 
people.

Efficiency 
improvements
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Western Power achieved significant 
milestones during this past year as 
we continued to implement our 
Strategic Plan to provide the 
community with safe, reliable and 
affordable electricity, and to 
facilitate State economic growth.

The business understands the 
importance of our customers and in 
particular, the links between the 
customer and the many challenges 
facing the energy sector. While safety 
continues to be Western Power’s 
highest priority, customer focus is a 
cornerstone of our Strategic Plan and 
now encompasses the whole 
business. 

One of the enormous challenges 
before us is the need to rebuild an 
ageing network after years of under 
investment. This task must be 
balanced against the need for financial 
sustainability and an operating 
environment of reduced shareholder 
capacity to fund works, declining 
average unit consumption and rising 
network costs. 

This challenge is further exacerbated 
by the need to continue the 
transformation of Western Power into a 
more efficient, commercial and 
customer-focused organisation. It is 
essential that our transformation is run 

in parallel with the need to embrace 
change as the energy market works to 
accommodate funding and pricing 
pressures in an environment of 
changing customer expectations and 
options due to technology innovation.

Western Power remains committed to 
working collaboratively with government, 
regulators and stakeholders to apply a 
risk-based investment program to 
ensure capital expenditure is targetted 
to improve public safety and optimise 
system reliability. Pleasingly, workforce 
productivity and safety continued to 
improve over the past year. As a 
generalisation, works were delivered 
safely and on time, with significantly 
lower unit rates being achieved in 
many of Western Power’s critical public 
safety programs.

Enhanced business acumen and  
a vigorous commitment to our 
Strategic Plan objectives has resulted 
in $352 million in operating expenditure 
savings, compared to Western Power’s 
third Access Arrangement proposal for 
the five-year period 2012-13 to 
2016-17. An additional $1.55 billion of 
savings has been identified in planned 
asset investments since the Economic 
Regulation Authority’s further final 
decision was issued in November 2012.
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This year also saw a streamlining of 
Western Power’s organisational 
structure and the final appointments 
to the executive and wider senior 
leadership team. 

The impact of these changes has been 
significant with a greater acceptance of 
accountability at all levels, and the 
recognition that the organisation’s 
success is directly linked to quality 
customer outcomes.

While we have made considerable 
progress on our journey of change 
over the past year, and acknowledge 
that much has been achieved, there is 
still much more to do. Chief Executive 
Officer Paul Italiano and his 
management team have been highly 
effective in implementing an ambitious 
strategy, and the business is now well 
positioned to face the challenges 
ahead.

As Chairman of Western Power I would 
like to acknowledge and thank our 
Minister, the Hon. Dr Mike Nahan MLA 
for his ongoing support and 
understanding as we continue to 
implement the necessary changes to 
our business model to match the 
shifting needs of our customers.

On behalf of the Board, I would also 
like to acknowledge and thank the 
commitment and understanding of our 
management team and our employees 
during this period of continuous 
change. 

It is their unwavering commitment to 
Western Power’s values of safety, 
integrity, delivery, service and respect 
– witnessed during day-to-day 
activities and as an emergency 
responder throughout the bushfire and 
storm seasons – that keeps our 
customers’ lights on.

Finally, I would like to acknowledge my 
fellow directors for their commitment 
and support over the last year.

Alan Mulgrew 
Chairman
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More than ever before, Australian 
living standards are dependent on 
the safe and reliable access to 
electricity supply. Western Power 
provides an essential service by 
ensuring the safe delivery of 
electricity to nearly 2.5 million 
people living in Western Australia.

Our commitment to safe, reliable and 
affordable connection to electricity was 
reflected in our performance during 
2013-14, including: 

• no Type 1 compliance breaches for 
the year

• delivery of a record $1.427 billion 
works program

• treatment of a record number of 
wood power poles

• capital investment of $1.18 billion –  
12 per cent higher than the previous 
year

• 29,532 new customers connected to 
the network – a five year high.

We delivered these results at the same 
time as achieving a year-on-year 
reduction in operating expenditure for 
the second consecutive year. 

DEMAND

The amount of electricity transported 
by the network rose by 1.7 per cent to 
17,373 gigawatt hours over the past 
year. We forecast this will grow to over 
18,000 gigawatt hours within the next 
two years.

Electricity consumption in the 
Residential and Small Commercial 
sectors of the economy reduced 
slightly during the year in comparison 
to the previous year. However this was 
offset by higher growth in the Large 
Commercial and Industrial sectors. 
The growth in electricity consumption 
in Western Australia differs from the 
national market, where electricity 
consumption continues to fall year-on-
year, and reflects the fact that the State 
is growing faster than the rest of the 
country.

In 2013-14, the network peak was 
3,514 megawatts – 97 megawatts 
lower than the previous year. The peak 
was recorded at 5.25pm on 20 
January 2014. 
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The all-time record network peak is 
3,694 megawatts which was recorded 
at 4.45pm on 25 January 2012. We 
predict that peak demand will occur 
later in the day when output from 
photovoltaics is significantly reduced.

As the time of peak demand occurs 
closer to sunset, we forecast that 
future peak demand will begin to rise 
again as the increase in electricity 
consumption is not offset by 
photovoltaic output.

NETWORK AFFORDABILITY

A recent independent study into 
the electricity sector in Western 
Australia highlighted that the tariff 
paid by consumers for the Western 
Power network is one of the 
lowest in the country. 

This is despite the network’s 
geographic diversity and the State’s 
relatively low population density 
compared to other states.

Nevertheless, we remain committed to 
providing an affordable network and 
we continue to drive efficiency across 
the organisation. 2013-14 saw the 
implementation of a range of strategic 
initiatives designed to significantly 
improve operating efficiency while 
enhancing delivery of network 
investment. The initiatives included the 
deployment of a new operating model 
and a revised organisational structure, 
and we also achieved a reduction  
in operating expenditure of over  
$27 million during the year. 

The resulting change meant that a 
number of roles were identified as 
being no longer required and a number 
of people left the business during the 
year, many of whom had provided 
years of service to Western Power and 
the community in general. I would like 
to thank them for their efforts and 
contributions. 

NETWORK INVESTMENT

It has been widely acknowledged that 
the network has experienced a 
sustained period of underinvestment. 
Consequently, some of our 
transmission and distribution assets 
are operating beyond their originally 
intended lifespan. As we would all be 
aware, older assets have an increased 
potential to fail, which, if left untreated, 
may lead to a higher frequency of 
service disruptions, incidence of 
property damage or a number of 
public safety hazards.

We have made significant progress 
over the past few years on improving 
the condition of the wood pole 
population in the network. A record 
91,352 wood poles were replaced or 
reinforced during the year, and we 
must sustain our effort going forward. 
In addition, we are also focusing our 
attention on other classes of assets 
and incorporating new and emerging 
technologies into the network.
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When severe weather affected the 
network last September, our crews 
adopted their emergency responder 
role. They safely repaired more than 
480 storm-related faults inside of two 
days and in appalling conditions in 
order to restore electricity supply. 

In January this year, a devastating 
bushfire swept through the Perth Hills 
area. More than 200 Western Power 
employees replaced 155 poles and 
nearly nine kilometres of powerline 
conductor in less than one week to 
ensure the people who could, were 
able to safely return to their homes.

These achievements reflect a  
true team effort and clearly 
demonstrate our role as an 
essential service provider to 
Western Australians.

I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank our employees for their efforts 
and contributions over the past year. 
Their professionalism and dedication 
has helped Western Power best deliver 
on our customer orientation to meet 
the changing needs of the market and 
our customers. I would also like to 
thank our customers, suppliers and 
stakeholders for their continued 
support over this past year. 

I thank the Board for its continued 
sound guidance. We are all working 
harder, working smarter and working 
together to deliver safe, reliable and 
affordable electricity to Western 
Australians.

Paul Italiano  
Chief Executive Officer

INVESTMENT FOR THE FUTURE

Western Australia’s energy 
industry is changing, and we are 
well placed to respond to new 
generation, new consumption 
habits and new uses for electricity 
that may arise. However we are 
acutely aware that our customers will 
continue to demand the level of 
reliability of supply and power quality 
that they currently enjoy, and this will 
always be a value proposition for the 
network.

Electricity networks will continue to 
play a pivotal role in servicing the 
future needs of electricity consumers. 
There is emerging consensus that, in 
addition to traditional generators and 
consumers, the future electricity 
market will include:

• utility-scale renewable generators 
that will want to connect to the 
network to gain access to their 
customers

• customers who self-generate but will 
choose to remain connected to the 
network

• customers who will want to share 
generated electricity with other 
consumers which will require a 
network connection

• consumers that demand large 
energy loads where self-generation 
is not an option

• customers in high density living, for 
whom self-generation will not be 
feasible; a network connection will 
provide them with access to their 
energy needs. 

Western Power will need to adapt 
to these changes, and the 
electricity sector must consider 
how it will move in response, 
including changing tariff 
structures to better reflect 
consumer behaviour. 

While emerging technologies have and 
will continue to result in a number of 
opportunities and challenges, we 
remain dedicated to ensuring Western 
Australians keep their safe and reliable 
access to electricity.

SAFETY

While much improvement has been 
made to provide a safe environment for 
the public and our people this year, 
sadly an employee of a contractor to 
Western Power on the Mid West 
Energy Project was fatally injured  
in April. 

My thoughts continue to be with his 
family and colleagues, as well as the 
local community affected by this 
tragedy. A number of investigations 
continue into the circumstances of this 
incident. We remain committed to 
providing a safe workplace for our 
employees and contractors. This tragic 
incident serves as a reminder of the 
hazards facing us every day and the 
need for us to remain vigilant in our 
pursuit of a safe work place. We will 
take all appropriate actions to minimise 
the risk of such an incident happening 
again.

OUR PEOPLE

I want to take this opportunity to thank 
my executive and senior leadership 
team for their efforts and contributions 
this year during what has been a time 
of significant transformation. These 
leaders, together with our workforce, 
have demonstrated an unwavering 
commitment to serving our customers 
in our daily operations, and at times  
of crisis.

It is undeniable that the great strength 
of Western Power is our people and 
the focus we now have on providing 
the best possible service for our 
customers. 
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offices throughout the SWIS region, 
including our head office which is 
located in Wellington Street, Perth, 
Western Australia.

OUR ORIENTATION AND 
PURPOSE

Western Power’s orientation is serving 
customers and our purpose is 
connecting people with electricity in a 
manner which aligns with our key 
objectives of providing a safe, reliable 
and affordable electricity supply to 
Western Australians. 

OUR STRATEGY

Our five-year Strategic Plan (2013-17) is 
built around a customer orientation, 
which means we consider the impact 
on our customers in all of our business 
decisions. This plan recognises that 
the delivery of these services is 
essential to the economic development 
and living standards of the Western 
Australian community.

In line with our commitment to 
continually improve the overall 
performance of our business, the 
senior management team reviewed our 
Strategic Plan during 2013-14 and 
refined the plan to better match the 
changing market environment and our 
customers’ changing expectations. 

This strategic agility is further evidence 
of Western Power’s transformation into 
a more customer-focused organisation. 
This new approach was fully endorsed 
by our Board and has been embedded 
into the business.

One of the critical success factors is 
our improved capacity to meet our 
customers’ expectations while 
maintaining strong relationships. 

Execution of the four strategic themes 
below is progressing well as we move 
into the second year. 

1. Operating Model and Key 
Processes – improving the 
performance of key operational 
processes and commercial 
practices to reduce expenditure 
while improving the customer 
experience.

• 2013-14 saw a new operating model 
introduced to provide an end-to-end 
view of Western Power’s business 
with a rationalised governance 
framework that improves 
accountability, leadership and 
decision making. The new 
organisational structure is designed 
to better support the field workforce 
and meet the changing needs of 
customers. 

OUR PROFILE

WHO WE ARE

Western Power is a State 
Government-owned corporation 
that builds, maintains and 
operates the electricity network 
throughout the majority of south 
Western Australia. 

We are focused on being a customer-
oriented organisation that provides a 
safe, reliable and affordable electricity 
supply to over one million connected 
customers including homes, 
businesses, factories, mines, schools 
and hospitals across the South West 
Interconnected System (SWIS). This 
geographical spread is bounded by 
Kalbarri, Albany and Kalgoorlie.

Western Power provides an essential 
service to the community and our 
customers through the transmission 
and distribution of electricity across 
our vast infrastructure of poles, wires, 
substations and depots. Unlike 
Synergy, we do not generate or retail 
electricity, and unlike Horizon Power, 
we do not operate in some rural areas 
of Western Australia.

Western Power is governed by an 
independent Board and reports to the 
Minister for Energy, as the owner’s 
representative. We operate depots and 
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• Our business processes and the 
way we manage external suppliers 
has significantly improved. This 
business-wide continuous 
improvement approach will deliver 
optimal customer service outcomes.

2. Asset Management – improving 
the efficiency and effectiveness 
of asset management practices 
to achieve agreed levels of 
network performance at the 
lowest possible life cycle cost.

• 2013-14 saw significant improvement 
in our strategies for managing assets 
that present the greatest public 
safety risk, including wood poles 
and overhead wires.

• We introduced new methods and 
technologies for inspection of our 
assets to gather data about their 
condition faster and more accurately 
and a new approach to enable 
better and more transparent 
risk-based asset management 
investment.

3. Culture and Leadership 
Capability – establishing the 
desired culture and necessary 
capability within the business 

 that is oriented toward 
consistently meeting customer 
expectations and continually 
improving business 
performance.

• We have established our desired 
culture – how we work – to ensure 
we can attract and retain the right 
people to achieve our corporate 
objectives.

• We developed a Leadership Charter 
and a Leadership Framework and 
conducted leadership assessments 
on our top 150 leaders. This 
included 360 degree feedback on 
leadership styles and assessments 
against our leadership 
competencies. 

4. External Connections – 
establishing new and strengthen 
existing relationships with key 
stakeholders with the aim of 
creating a better understanding 
of Western Power’s strategic 
intent and a better 
understanding of our 
stakeholder needs; embedding 
the business approach which 
delivers a positive customer 
experience. 

• We have intensified our public safety 
focus, delivering a robust safety 
education program through 
community engagement and 
strategic investment in the 
communities where we operate.

• We are developing a customer 
service strategy aimed at increasing 
our understanding of our customers’ 
expectations of Western Power.

These strategic themes form the 
fundamental building blocks that will 
ensure our business is well positioned 
to meet future challenges head on, and 
deliver on our core objectives of 
providing a safe, reliable and affordable 
electricity supply to Western 
Australians.
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OUR NETWORK

The Western Power Network1 covers a 
very large area of 255,064 square 
kilometres. It is an isolated and 
self-contained network. 

This means the electricity needs of 
customers within the network must at 
all times be delivered by the system 
itself, without any outside support or 
back up – unlike networks that cover 
other major urban areas of Australia 
through a series of interconnected 
networks known as the National 
Electricity Market. 

The network was first built in the early 
parts of the twentieth century and 
underwent a period of rapid growth in 
the metropolitan areas in the 1950s 
and 1960s and in rural areas in the 
1970s and 1980s. 

Maintaining and replacing these assets 
remains a challenge as we seek to 
ensure safety and reliability while 
containing costs. Continued growth in 
population and the proliferation of 
electrical appliances such as air 
conditioners have seen a rise in 
demand for electricity, putting further 
pressure on the network. 

Investment in our existing assets has 
been below sustainable levels for a 
number of years. As a result, many of 
our assets are operating well beyond 
their design life, or in a condition worse 
than what would normally be 
considered acceptable. Despite the 
investment in the network, assets 
continue to age and deteriorate. While 
this does not mean an asset is likely to 
fail immediately, the frequency and 
severity of defects can be expected to 
increase.

.....................................

...
...

...
...

...

.....
..

Map of the network

This situation and declining investment 
presents significant challenges in 
terms of the future management of the 
network.

In addition to planning, building and 
maintaining the network, Western 
Power has a System Management 
function which ensures there is 
sufficient short term generation 
capacity, system integrity and an 
appropriate system configuration. This 
enables us to meet predicted 
electricity usage across the network.

System Management’s role is to also 
work collaboratively across the whole 
energy sector including generation, 
transmission, distribution and 
customers to ensure the secure 
operation of the network during 
planned and unplanned outages 
(power interruptions).

1 For more information on the condition of the 
Western Power Network, please see the  
State of the Infrastructure Report.
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Circuit length 
(km)

Transmission

Total

98,967 km

Overhead

7,501.8
Underground  

70
Total 

7,571.8
Distribution

Overhead 

68,329.7
Underground

23,065.9
Total

91,395.6

Poles and  
towers

Transmission Distribution
Total

807,36941,841 765,555

Transmission 
Substations

Terminal substations Zone substations Total  

substations

156

Streetlights

245,685
 

26
 

130

Combined 
transformer 
capacity

Total capacity bulk 

(terminal) power 

transformers 

7,355 MVA
2

Total capacity 

sub-transmission 

(zone) power 

transformers

8,458 MVA

Number of  

distribution 

transformers  

66,815

Total capacity  

distribution  

transformers  

9,203 MVA

Energy Total energy  

transported on  

the network 

17,373 GWH
3

SWIS peak  

generation  

 

3,982 MW
4

Energy lost during 

transmission and 

distribution  

(line losses)

5.9%

Western Power  

Network peak load 

demand 

on 20 January 2014

3,514 MW

NETWORK METRICS

2 MVA = Mega Volt Ampere 
3 GWH = Gigawatt Hour
4 MW = Mega Watts 
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FUTURE OF THE NETWORK

We are witnessing an evolutionary 
period in global utilities’ business 
models, driven by a range of new 
challenges and opportunities; the rise 
of solar generation, electric vehicles, 
access to information and the 
continued drive for a sustainable lower 
carbon future. At the same time, our 
industry continues to face regulatory 
and legislative uncertainty.

Western Power views this as an 
opportunity to strengthen our 
business as we will be an integral 
part of the energy future - providing 
an essential service to the 
electricity consumers of 
tomorrow.

Emerging technology is creating a 
number of challenges and 
opportunities in the electricity industry. 

Examples of these technologies 
include solar photovoltaic (PV), wind, 
electric vehicles, batteries, standalone 
power systems and energy efficient 
appliances. These technology 
advancements will ultimately change 
how consumers source, use and pay 
for electricity.

Of significant impact over the last year 
has been the continuing customer 
trend to install PVs, particularly on 
residential premises. A new trend 
emerging is the increase in the volume 
of commercial-size solar PV facilities 
being installed in areas such as office 
building rooftops.

Another potential emerging technology 
is energy storage via battery 
technology.  As battery technology 
matures and becomes more 

economic, it could provide a solution in 
some parts of the network at a lower 
cost than the traditional network 
solution. Western Power is continually 
monitoring these innovations against 
the cost of traditional network 
solutions.

In this changing arena, the electricity 
generation mix will continue to grow 
and Western Power will continue 
to ensure reliability of electricity 
through shared capacity into the 
future - regardless of the form of 
generation.

The CSIRO and other independent 
bodies have indicated that the 
electricity network will remain an 
integral part of electricity supply 
chains. Western Power is well 
positioned to utilise the community’s 
investment in the network to take 
advantage of this changing mix as well 
as the changes in electricity consumer 
behaviour as illustrated below.

OUR PROFILE CONTINUED

MICRO GRIDS 

SELF SUFFICIENCY 

Mobile storage
Utility scale storage  

Distribution
management

services

ELECTRIC
VEHICLES

 
SOLAR 

HYDRO

WAVE
GEO

THERMAL 

WIND

NON
RENEWABLES

THE CHANGING GENERATION MIX
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OUR ROLE IN THE ELECTRICITY 
VALUE CHAIN

Western Power’s value proposition 
is the reliable supply of electricity 
through the sharing of capacity.

As a network provider, our functional 
role is to facilitate the flow of electricity 
from generators through the 
transmission and distribution network 
to the ultimate end consumers. In this 
respect, our customers lie at each end 
of the network; both generators and 
consumers. Western Power’s network 
acts as the mechanism to connect 
buyers and sellers of electricity. 

Western Power remains committed to 
reducing the pressure on increases in 
pricing our customers pay for 

electricity – whether this is by reducing 
operating costs through greater 
efficiency and effectiveness, or by 
improving the management of shared 
capacity to avoid costly investment in 
the network. 

Energy efficiency – helping our 
customers save energy and save 
costs

Electricity demand is impacted by 
seasonal conditions, economic activity 
and population growth. Western Power 
connected an additional 29,532 
customers in 2013-14, most of whom 
will be using air conditioners, pool 
pumps, dishwashers and other 
common household or business 
electrical items. 

This increased activity impacts the 
affordability and reliability of the 
network, especially during the summer 
months. 

Western Power’s Beat the Peak 
education campaign was conducted 
over the summer to raise awareness 
and understanding of how customers 
can achieve savings and reduce their 
impact on the network during peak 
periods. This can be accomplished by 
changes in customer behaviour during 
the peak period between 4pm and 
8pm when people generally come 
home and switch on their appliances. 

Generators make electricity 
at power plants using a 
variety of fuel sources 
including non-renewables.

The network or grid is made 
up of transmission assets 
(high voltage infrastructure 
such as large steel towers) 
and distribution assets (low 
voltage infrastructure such 
as suburban street power 
poles and conductors or 
wires). The network enables 
electricity to flow from 
generators to consumers.

Retailers manage the 
interface between the 
network and electricity 
consumers. They issue 
accounts to collect revenue 
for the whole electricity 
supply chain.

GENERATION 

CUSTOMERS

GENERATORS CONSUMERS

CUSTOMERS

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION 
Western Power

RETAIL 
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Some of the key behaviours the 
successful Beat the Peak campaign 
influenced were:

• 4 out of 5 survey respondents 
indicated they are likely to keep their 
doors and blinds closed when it is 
hot outside

• 67 per cent will keep their air 
conditioners set to 24 degrees

• 78 per cent intend to manage their 
electricity use wisely between 4pm 
and 8pm

• 73 per cent plan to only use 
electrical appliances they really need 
between 4pm and 8pm. 

Source: Ipsos campaign research

The Beat the Peak post-campaign 
research also showed around  
50 per cent of survey respondents 
believe education about reducing 
energy consumption should be 
prioritised. 



17

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2014

SUPPLY CHAIN COSTS 

Western Power’s service is only one 
part of the electricity supply chain. We 
connect customers with electricity by 
transferring the energy from generators 
to homes and businesses. This 
transfer of electricity (network prices) 
contributes to around one third of the 
total electricity cost for residential and 
small business customers. 

The remaining two thirds that contribute 
to the total electricity cost include the 
cost of generating electricity (energy, 
excess energy), retail costs, renewable 
(green) energy and policies set by the 
Government such as the Tariff 
Equalisation Contribution (TEC) as 
indicated in the first chart.

The price customers pay for electricity 
is not cost-reflective. The second chart 
indicates the Government contribution 
which is the amount passed to Synergy 
(retailer) in the form of a Community 
Service Obligation to subsidise the 
price that customers pay for electricity.

Despite the challenges of being 
one of the most isolated electricity 
networks in the world, Western 
Power’s network costs remains 
the third lowest in Australia.

What it costs5
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Over the last 12 months, we have 
excelled in our role as emergency 
responders – specifically during the 
September storms and the disastrous 
January fires in the Perth Hills area. 
Our crews and support teams safely 
delivered the following restoration 
works in challenging weather and 
working conditions.

September 2013 storms

Two major cold fronts passed through 
the south west of Western Australia in 
September, bringing strong, damaging 
100km per hour wind gusts and 
showers. These two storms caused 
significant damage to our overhead 
network assets, affecting more than 
63,000 customers during a two-day 
period. 

Another two cold fronts passed 
through the area two days later, 
causing further damage to the local 
network, which subsequently resulted 
in additional supply interruptions, as 
well as exacerbating delays in supply 
restoration to customers affected by 
the previous storms. Our crews lived 
up to their reputation as essential 
service providers by responding to 
more than 125 pole-related incidents 
and safely restored supply to the 
majority of customers within four days.

There were no Lost Time Injuries 
reported during our response and 
recovery period – a great 
reflection of our unwavering focus 
to keep our workforce safe.

January 2014 fires

In January 2014, approximately 57 
residences were destroyed or 
damaged by a devastating fire in the 
Perth Hills area. The fire – ignited by a 
private power pole – also destroyed or 
damaged a significant number of 
power poles resulting in approximately 
1000 customers without power. 
Western Power crews were first on the 
scene to ensure other emergency 
responders could enter danger zones 
in a safe and controlled manner. 

The repatriation period saw up to 32 
Western Power crews on stand-by and 
more than 200 employees working 
tirelessly to safely replace more than 
155 power poles and nine kilometres 
of power lines. 

These heroic efforts were 
recognised in an official review by 
the State Emergency Management 
Committee – positively referencing 
Western Power’s involvement and 
community response to the event.

Being a high performing 
organisation is vital in order to 
provide safe, reliable and 
affordable electricity to Western 
Australians. We aspire to ensure 
safe outcomes for our people, our 
customers and the environment.

Western Power has an obligation to 
address risks and hazards in our 
network and is committed to providing 
a safe and effective working 
environment. The continuous 
improvement in the safety and health 
of our employees and contractors will 
help us reduce the risk that our assets 
and activities present to the 
community, as well as minimise impact 
on the environment. 

Western Power’s people take pride in 
our proven ability to operate 
successfully in an austere economic 
environment and changing market 
conditions to address the highest 
public safety risks posed by ageing 
network assets.  This year our capital 
expenditure program focused on 
reducing the risk to electricity 
consumers and the general public. The 
program also delivered significant 
improvement in unit costs in key public 
safety initiatives. 
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There were however, some solid gains 
made in a number of health and safety 
areas during a year of organisational 
change. We continued to encourage all 
of our employees and contractors to 
become safety, health and 
environmental leaders in the business. 
We sought continuous improvement to 
reduce risk associated with operational 
work – particularly regarding network 
operations, live line working, facilities 
management and travel by road. 
Reinforcing this message, Western 
Power’s senior leadership team 
members participated in site safety 
visits across the organisation. 

With knowledge of our current 
performance and culture, our 
commitment to continuous 
improvement in processes and 
behaviours has ensured our total 
recordable injury frequency rate 
(TRIFR) and lost time injury frequency 
(LTIFR) remain below their five-year 
improvement glide path. 

The table below illustrates that our 
LTIFR1 and TRIFR2 lagging 
performance indicators at the end of 
the year were comparable with the 
previous year-end at 0.8 and 7.6 
respectively.

LTIFR1 TRIFR2

2007/08 4.3 -

2008/09 2.7 -

2009/10 2.6 -

2010/11 1.9 12.1

2011/12 1.6 9.9

2012/13 0.8 7.9

2013/14 0.8 7.6

1 LTIFR – Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate 
(Number of lost time incidents per million hours 
worked)

2 TRIFR – Total Recordable Injury Frequency 
Rate (Number of lost time, restricted work and 
medical treatment injuries per million hours 
worked)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW 
WORKFORCE HEALTH AND SAFETY

At Western Power – if it’s not safe, 
we don’t do it.

Western Power continues to invest 
in sustaining a positive safety 
culture that is inherent in everything 
we do. 

It is regrettable that a tragic incident 
occurred on 4 April this year that 
resulted in a fatal injury to an employee 
of Downer Engineering, a contractor to 
Western Power, on the Mid West 
Energy Project.

Western Power has worked with the 
Downer management team, 
EnergySafety and WorkSafe to 
investigate the incident and identify 
recommendations to prevent a 
recurrence. As a result of this tragic 
incident, and given Western Power’s 
commitment to safe outputs, we 
consider that we did not meet the 
safety standards we set ourselves.
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PUBLIC SAFETY

Electricity by nature is hazardous 
and addressing safety risk 
associated with the network is a 
core focus. 

The Western Power Public Safety Plan 
drives Western Power’s approach to 
public safety by drawing together 
safety strategies, programs and 
activities undertaken across the 
business to focus on improving the 
network, our workforce and public 
awareness. 

Asset Management – Our strategic 
focus on asset management 
performance is to ensure we reduce 
the risk posed to public safety from 
ageing network assets. We are refining 
our risk-based asset management 
approach to maximise the impact of 
our investment in the network.

Due to decades of underinvestment in 
the network, we have focused on a 
number of public safety initiatives in 
relation to the management of our 
assets. Three key initiatives 
implemented over the past year 
included:

1. Elimination of over 5,000 km of 
streetlight switchwire from the 
network

2. Upgrade of 68,224 overhead 
customer service connections, with 
further increases expected over 
coming years

3. Treatment of 91,352 wood poles. 
Replacements increased by 36 per 
cent and reinforcements increased 
by 40 per cent over the previous 
year.

Public safety – Western Power is 
committed to creating greater 
awareness around public safety. This 
important initiative is a shared 
responsibility for us and the 
communities in which we operate. To 
ensure continuous improvement in 
public safety we remain focused on 
two major components:

1. Public behaviour incidents resulting 
in intentional or unintentional contact 
with part of Western Power’s 
network (i.e. agricultural machinery, 
construction and general public)

2. Network incidents resulting in a third 
party impact (ground fires, fauna or 

vegetation contact or injury to a 
member of the public) which can be 
caused by asset failure.

During the year 201 public safety 
incidents were recorded – an increase 
on the previous year. This equates to a 
rolling 12-month average of 16.5 
incidents per month (12.2 in 2012-13), 
against an annual target of 9.5. 

The increase in public safety incidents 
was associated with both asset-related 
and interference incidents. The 
diagram below shows the specific 
incident break down. 

Public safety incident type No. Incidents

Fire/damage caused by Western Power assets 118

Vehicle, plant or equipment contact with the Western 
Power network

75

Injury to people requiring medical treatment or livestock 
fatality from inadvertent contact with the Western Power 
network 

6

Injury (requiring medical treatment) from electric shock 
caused by the Western Power network

0

EnergySafety order or reported defect 2

Total 201
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PUBLIC SAFETY AWARENESS

Western Power continued to 
deliver on our customers’ 
expectation as a trusted expert  
in safety. 

We know that changing safety 
attitudes is facilitated through the 
sharing of information. 

Specifically-designed community 
education forums and public safety 
campaigns formed the foundation of 
our public safety strategy to minimise 
potential impact on our customers and 
stakeholders. These campaigns deliver 
electrical safety messages and 
highlight the very real consequences of 
the wrong attitude to electrical safety.

Contact by third party operators with 
the network has been a growing cause 
of public safety incidents. Over the 
past year, we have proactively 
engaged with targetted businesses 
and industry groups to raise public 
safety awareness when undertaking 
high risk activities in proximity to the 
network. 

Western Power’s Shockproof! initiative 
is specifically designed to provide 
education to primary school groups 
about how electricity works and how 
to keep safe around electricity both 
inside and outside the home, using real 
life examples. 

Our Make the Safe Call public safety 
campaign runs in summer and winter, 
when weather conditions such as high 
winds, thunderstorms and electrical 
storms are most likely to damage 
electricity assets and present potential 
safety hazards to local communities. 

More Western Australians know to call 
Western Power when they come 
across a fallen or damaged powerline 
as a result of the Make the Safe Call 
campaign. This year’s summer 
campaign is the most successful to 
date for increasing public awareness 
and improving community knowledge 
in relation to safety around fallen 
powerlines. 

• One in five people surveyed are 
now able to recite Western 
Power’s 24/7 emergency line  
(13 13 51)6

• In addition, 56 per cent7 of 
community members are now 
aware that Western Power is the 
relevant authority to contact in 
the event of a fallen powerline, 
an increase from winter 2013.

Western Power also collaborated with 
the Government and other emergency 
responders over the 2013-14 summer 
to create the popular ‘Are You Bushfire 
Ready?’ campaign – spearheaded by 
Victoria Cross recipient Ben Roberts-
Smith. The campaign was built around 
the core message that bushfire 
preparation is a responsibility shared 
by Government, emergency services, 
communities, neighbours and 
individuals.

The campaign delivered positive 
results across a number of measures8: 

• ‘Are you Bushfire Ready?’ message 
was valued by the community – 99 
per cent in Perth Metropolitan and 
98 per cent in high risk areas (Perth 
Hills/South West) rating the 
campaign purpose important or very 
important

• Our TV commercial reached vast 
numbers of the target audience, with 
83 per cent prompted recall in the 
South West and 72 per cent 
prompted recall in Perth Hills/
Metropolitan areas

• Our TV commercial was effective in 
communicating key messages 
including the importance of ‘being 
bushfire ready is every West 
Australian’s responsibility’, and 
‘being bushfire ready is important to 
ensure everyone’s safety’. Both 
messages achieved a high mean 
score of over 3.5 out of 4 on this 
measure.

6 Post-activity research into our 2013-14 Make 

the Safe Call summer campaign

7 Source: Ipsos campaign research

8 Source: Metrix Consulting campaign research
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Western Power’s customer service 
centre operates 24 hours per day, 
seven days a week and is supported 
by the busy reception area at our head 
office. This year the reception team 
won a High Commendation in the 2013 
National Customer Service Council 
Excellence Awards. 

Our call centre received more than 
900,000 calls this year, of which 75 per 
cent were customers Making the Safe 
Call, having either lost power or 
experienced an issue with supply. 
Despite events such as fires and 
storms affecting the south west of 
Western Australia, over 90 per cent of 
all calls were answered within 30 
seconds. 

Over the last year, an uptake in social 
and digital media was recorded, with 
the greatest engagement during a time 
of crisis. This was followed closely by 
planned and unplanned outages, 
where our customers sought regular 
updates on Western Power’s activities. 
In March this year, we deployed a 
mobile phone-friendly Power 
Interruption Tool to enable our 
customers to check any outages from 
their mobile device. 

We continue to look towards mobile 
and other self-service applications to 
service our customers in the way they 
choose to interact with Western Power. 
This year we developed an integrated 
digital communication plan in 
recognition of these changing 
customer needs, and importantly, to 
help us meet our customer’s 
expectations when operating in these 
channels. This customer demand is 
evidenced by results including:

52 per cent increase in Twitter 
followers

268 per cent increase in 
Facebook page likes 

More than 900,000 visits to 
Western Power’s home page: 
westernpower.com.au 

In keeping with our customer 
orientation, the call centre team 
members pride themselves on 
listening to and understanding our 
customers’ needs, and relaying 
the necessary information in a 
timely manner to the business to 
minimise impact on our customers 
and the network. 

As well as residential, business and 
large industrial customers, Western 
Power services customers as 
diverse as the electrical industry 
(designers, consultants, 
electricians), the transport industry 
(when large loads are moved near 
the network), local councils, land 
developers, farmers (who have 
network infrastructure on their land) 
and the building industry. Electricity 
generators and retailers also form 
part of our customer base.

NEW CONNECTIONS 

We worked with EnergySafety and the 
electrical contracting industry to safely 
connect 29,532 new customers to the 
network in 2013-14, which is a five-year 
high.

CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE

Western Power’s award winning 
customer service centre is located in 
our head office in Wellington Street, 
Perth. It is the gateway for our 
customers to seek services and report 
network issues that require action. 

All of Western Power’s dedicated 
customer service team view 
serving customers as their 
important contribution to the 
community. 
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COMPLAINTS

Western Power recognised that our 
customers had three key areas of 
concern over the past year. The 
highest dissatisfaction was with 
planned outages. The two remaining 
areas of concern were the timeliness of 
PV connections and customer-funded 
work. Western Power is committed to 
improving our performance in these 
three important areas.

We have instigated a more proactive 
and improved communications 
approach when undertaking planned 
maintenance work which affects a 
customer’s electricity supply. This has 
helped contribute to around a five per 
cent decrease in the overall need for 
customers to contact us compared to 
last year. We continue to address this 
area of concern through more timely 
community engagement and 
specifically designed customer 
communication materials. 

This year we saw a reduction in the 
number of customer complaints. We 
received 5479 complaints from 
customers who were not satisfied with 
the service they received from Western 
Power – a reduction from 664 over the 

previous year. 99.6 per cent of these 
complaints were closed within 15 days 
and all were closed within a 20-day 
period. 

WHAT OUR CUSTOMERS THINK

Western Power independently 
monitors our customers’ perception of 
their experience when they engage 
with us. This is measured across a 
range of interactions including faults 
and power restoration, customer 
projects and metering services. 

In 2013-14 we again improved our 
customers’ experience with 78 per 
cent of customers rating their 
experience with us as positive or 
neutral. We continue to proactively 
engage with our customers to provide 
timely information and address any 
concerns, especially when undertaking 
work on or near their property as this 
is a key determinant of their positive 
experience.

SERVICE STANDARD 
BENCHMARKS AND RELIABILITY 

Western Power manages our 
performance against 17 service 
standard benchmarks approved by the 
Economic Regulation Authority (ERA). 

These benchmarks are key 
performance measures that are 
deemed to be valued by our 
customers and relate to reliability of 
supply, security of supply, customer 
service (call centre) and streetlight 
performance. 

Western Power successfully 
achieved 16 service standard 
benchmarks in the 2013-14 period. 

Overall improvement was achieved in 
streetlight fault repair time, call centre 
service and distribution reliability 
performance. However, our Rural Long 
System Average Interruption 
Frequency Index (SAIFI) service 
standard benchmark was not met. 
This was due to an increase in 
customer interruptions from pole top 
fires, fauna and inclement weather. 

9 As reported to the Economic Regulation 
Authority and excludes power quality and 
reliability complaints, complaints unrelated to a 
product or service and Ministerial and 
Ombudsman complaints.
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Some of our initiatives included:

• Implementation of traditional 
reliability solutions on the network 
such as increased deployment of 
temporary local generation

• A renewed focus on proactive 
community engagement; supporting 
customers in areas that have 
historically experienced poor 
reliability

• Intense focus on planned and 
unplanned outage management, 
including improvements to works 
planning by bundling and allocating 
works in geographical areas.

Following a number of outages due to 
weather conditions over the summer in 
the tourism-reliant township of Kalbarri 
– one of the network’s edge of grid 
communities – Western Power took 
proactive measures to ensure security 
of supply for this year’s Easter and 
ANZAC Day periods. 

Following the failure of the second 
transformer at Muja Substation, 
Western Power implemented a number 
of network and System Management 
contingencies including voltage 
support in Albany to ensure security of 
supply to our customers in the Great 
Southern and South West Regions.

MEASUREMENT

Reliability is measured by customers’ 
felt experience of the Western Power 
network with regards to the number of 
sustained interruptions distribution 
customers have experienced. The 
number of interruptions and supply 
unavailability are both measured over a 
rolling 12-month period. 

The largest impact to our reliability 
measures was the interruptions in 
September 2013, where damaging 
wind gusts exceeding 100 kilometres 
per hour, caused network damage 
across the Great Southern, South 
West and Perth Metropolitan Regions. 
This resulted in loss of supply to 
around 63,000 customers, some of 
whom were without power for up to 
five days. 

In 2013-14 there was an average of 
2.45 interruptions per year – under our 
target of 2.94 interruptions. Customers 
were without power for an average of 
386 minutes per year – well under our 
target of 650 minutes.

Reliability of electricity supply is 
fundamentally important to our 
customers and, accordingly, it is 
reflected as a core objective in 
Western Power’s Strategic Plan 
2013-17. Overall, the reliability 
performance of the network was 
comparable with last year – 
achieving a supply availability of 
99.93 per cent.

In a constrained funding environment 
and with an increased focus on public 
safety, this level of reliability 
performance is at risk of deterioration. 
This year Western Power significantly 
increased our efforts to engage with 
local communities experiencing poor 
reliability performance, noting the 
geographical difficulties and 
challenges associated with the 
recognised decades of 
underinvestment in the network. 
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Solid activity in the first home owners 
market saw the demand for greenfield 
residential connections continue. 
REIWA has estimated that 
approximately 27,000 new dwellings 
were commenced in 2013-2014. 

The Western Australian Treasury 
forecasts the State’s population growth 
rate to ease and return to the long-
term trend rate of two per cent per 
annum for the period 2014 to 2018. 
However, dwelling commencements 
are forecast to continue at a rate of at 
least 20,000 per year. 

Western Power has responded to 
this activity and will continue to 
track market trends to meet 
changing customer needs. 

A steady number of embedded 
generation applications are being 
lodged, ranging from solar/diesel, solar 
thermal plants and biomass plants and 
an increasing number of new 
commercial solar enquiries and 
applications. 

We are progressing 358MW of wind 
and solar generation in the north of the 
network, which is due to be in-service 
in 2018. The south applications total 
170MW of generation, consisting of 
solar, bio-mass and wind which is due 
to be in service in late 2016.

Western Power’s works program is 
underpinned by collaborative 
working partnerships to find 
smarter, more sustainable ways to 
create a bright future for Western 
Australians.

Western Power continues to manage 
and foster relationships with key 
customers, retailers, generators, 
government and customer 
representative bodies for the land 
development and electrical consultant 
industries. By working closely with key 
customers and industry stakeholders, 
we have been able to better 
understand and manage their 
requirements – improving the service 
they receive from Western Power.

New connections 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

30,693 25,568 26,304 24,614 21,420 23,994 29,532 

29,532 new customers connected in 2013-14: a five-year high



29

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2014

INVESTING IN THE NETWORK

Western Power continued to invest 
in network augmentation and 
maintenance programs to achieve 
agreed levels of safety, reliability 
and capacity of the network. 

Our three major areas of activity include: 

• capacity 

• expanding the network 

• sustaining existing network assets.

CAPACITY

Planning the network’s development is 
essential for ensuring there is sufficient 
capacity to transmit electricity from 
generators to customers in a manner 
that is safe, reliable and affordable. 
The progressive transition towards an 
open energy market continues to 
introduce new dynamics that challenge 
load forecasting processes. Factors 
such as increasing electricity tariffs 
and lower overall visibility of 
developments across the market are 
making the peak demand growth path 
inherently less predictable. 

This complex challenge requires a 
long-term approach. As part of our 
future planning, we perform detailed 
system and network studies based on 
load and generation scenarios. 

The transmission network is planned 
with a ten-year outlook, supported by 
higher-level strategies looking 25 years 
into the future. 

In contrast, detailed planning of the 
distribution network takes place with a 
five-year timeframe due to its more 
dynamic characteristics.

Development plans for both the 
transmission and distribution networks 
must consider a diverse range of 
factors. 

These include technical rules 
governing network performance 
(administered by the ERA), load and 
generation forecasts, asset 
management plans, commercial 
objectives and funding levels.

This structured planning approach 
allows us to identify the most cost 
effective and efficient balance for 
meeting growing demand, while 
maintaining the network’s 
reliability and security. 

Further information on Western 
Power’s annual planning process can 
be found in our Annual Planning 
Report (APR) which is located on our 
website (westernpower.com.au). 

Western Power welcomes discussion 
and feedback on the APR from our 
customers and key stakeholders to 
provide insight for our planning 
activities and development plans.
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QEII Medical Centre  
Zone Substation

The QEII Medical Centre Zone 
Substation project provides 
capacity for the State 
Government’s Queen Elizabeth II 
Medical Centre redevelopment. 

The substation forms part of our 
Western Terminal 25-year strategy for 
the western suburbs of Perth. 

This project is a unique combination of 
customer driven work and capacity 
expansion. Western Power has worked 
closely with the customer and key 
agencies to assist with every stage of 
the project. Work has progressed 
steadily over the past year, with the 
project well on track to meet the 
in-service date.

Highlights of the project include:

• Successful delivery of two new 
transformers during a tight civil 
construction timeframe

• Energisation of transformers and 
switchboards on 10 and 20 June 
2014.

The facilities were put into service on 
time in June 2014 and on budget at a 
cost of $24.2 million.

Shenton Park Zone Substation

This year saw preliminary site 
works commence on the Shenton 
Park substation – also part of the 
Western Terminal 25-year strategy. 

Four community sessions were held 
from 2011 to 2013 to capture key 
concerns with the substation upgrade. 
Based on community input, 
landscaping designs were developed 
to minimise the impact associated with 
the project, resulting in a successful 
development application approval.

The project will see construction of a 
new 132/11 kV zone substation on 
land next to the existing smaller 
Shenton Park substation at an 
estimated cost of $49 million.  
The new substation will supply 
customers currently supplied by 
Herdsman Parade substation, enabling 
the retirement of both existing ageing 
substations, as well as providing 
capacity for forecast future 
development.

Construction of the new substation will 
be completed by April 2016 with the 
retirement of the existing Shenton Park 
and Herdsman Parade substations by 
November 2018. 

MAJOR PROJECTS

Mid West Energy Project (MWEP)

The $443 million MWEP is one of 
the largest public infrastructure 
projects currently underway in 
Western Australia. 

The project will provide the capacity to 
meet increasing demand for electricity 
and enable the connection of power 
generators and loads to the network 
between Nerrabup and Three Springs 
(a distance of 280 kilometres) – 
strengthening the reliability and 
security of our network and facilitating 
the growth of the Mid West Region. 

MWEP is presently forecast to be 
completed under budget, with 
identified savings already returned to 
the State Government. Recent 
milestones included:

• Substation works substantially 
completed, with all three major 
augmentations finished and line bays 
commissioned and energised on 
schedule within two weeks of each 
other in April this year

• A significant amount of work on the 
main 330kV line build with all of the 
foundations completed and all of the 
388 towers and poles erected. 
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CUSTOMER PROJECTS

Western Power welcomes the 
opportunity to work with customer 
partners to build the necessary 
infrastructure to support our 
growing population.

Over the past year, Western Power has 
been involved in a number of other key 
projects which are tracking on time 
and on budget.

• The Perth Stadium Project is a State 
Government initiative to create a 
major sporting and entertainment 
precinct on the Burswood peninsula 
– scheduled for completion in early 
2018. Western Power’s $8.29 million 
contribution to the project was 
through the relocation of a 
transmission line under the Graham 
Farmer freeway to facilitate the 
building of the new Perth Stadium 
railway station

• Western Power was a major 
contributor to the Gateway WA Perth 
Airport and Freight Access Project, 
which is classified as a National 
Priority Project. Extensive works 
involving the relocation of major 
parts of Western Power’s 
infrastructure were undertaken to 
create landmark infrastructure 
around the Perth Airport and the 
freight hubs of Kewdale and 
Forrestfield. The project is jointly 
funded by the Australian government 
and the Western Australian 
government, with Western Power 
contributing more than $2.74 million 
worth of works in this phase

• Western Power recently negotiated 
and executed a sale contract with a 
large gold miner in the Goldfields for 
their purchase of 15.3 kilometres of 
Western Power’s network line. This 
arrangement was an example of an 
edge of grid solution to meet 
customer outcomes where they 
required use of the network to 
facilitate their own generation.

SUSTAINING EXISTING ASSETS

Western Power is focused on 
improving the condition of existing 
assets to address network risk.

Existing Assets

The cycle of investment in the network 
spans a number of decades. 
Investment in Western Power’s existing 
assets has been below sustainable 
levels for a long time. 

As a result, many of our transmission 
and distribution assets are operating 
well beyond their functional lifespan, or 
in a condition worse than what would 
normally be considered acceptable.

Exceeding functional lifespan does not 
mean an asset is likely to fail 
immediately, however the frequency 
and severity of defects can be 
expected to increase.

Despite the recent investment in the 
network, the average age of our assets 
is continuing to age and deteriorate. 
Older assets are increasingly 
susceptible to failure and have the 
potential to cause service disruptions 
as well as serious public injury or 
damage.

Our works program for existing assets 
over the past year included fault 
repairs, condition inspections and 
assessments, maintenance, 
refurbishment and replacement. 

We have focused this works program 
on maintaining or improving the 
condition of existing assets to address 
network risk – particularly public safety 
risk. 

This year’s operational works program 
comprised more than 550 projects 
associated with existing assets 
including:

• Reinforcement and replacement of 
wood poles 

• New customer connections 

• Replacement of conductors 

• Substation construction 

• Clearing of vegetation underneath 
and around powerlines 

• Annual Summer Ready maintenance 
program 

• State Underground Power Program.

Key accomplishments in 2013-14 
included:

• Wood poles continue to be a key 
area of investment and we remain 
focused on addressing the highest 
risk wood poles across the network. 
Of more than 655,200 wood poles 
across the network, we replaced or 
reinforced over 90,000 in the past 
year. Wood pole replacements 
increased by 36 per cent to 23,711, 
while wood pole reinforcements 
increased by 40 per cent to a total of 
67,641

• The State Underground Power 
Program was a key contributor to 
the removal of many aged overhead 
conductor and service connections 
throughout the Perth metropolitan 
region. Suburbs undergrounded this 
year included Lathlain North, 
Lathlain South, Attadale North and 
Ardross West. Works are also 
underway in Hamilton Hill, Wilson 
East, Coolbinia and Shoalwater
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• Replacement of 417 kilometres of 
overhead conductor and upgraded 
68,224 overhead customer service 
connections during 2013-14, with 
further increases expected over 
coming years

• Successful conclusion of a six-year 
long program to remove all known 
streetlight switchwire from the 
network. 

There was a significant decrease of 
unassisted wood pole failures from the 
previous year, from 410 down to 232 
failures. We also improved our 
evidence collection which reduced the 
number of unsubstantiated unassisted 
failures. The network has previously 
been impacted by significant weather 
events; in 2013-14 we did not 
experience a weather event of such 
magnitude.

The table below shows the major 
activities undertaken during the year in 
comparison to previous years. 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Wood pole 
inspections

Distribution 162,568 173,876 169,519 178,741

Transmission 8,615 9,198 8,125 7,262

Total 171,183 183,074 177,644 186,003

Wood pole reinforcements 11,421 24,643 48,479 67,641

Wood pole replacements 12,633 15,512 17,432 23,711

Overhead customer service 
connection replacements 

42,062 56,207 54,252 68,224

Overhead conductor 
replacements

82 km 117 km 279 km 417km

Streetlight switchwire 
removed

159 km 1,268 km 3,066 km 1,141km 



34

PEOPLE

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2014

This year saw major change for our 
people and we are pleased with how 
our employees have responded to and 
embraced the necessary changes we 
are driving through the organisation to 
build a sustainable business. 

For 2013-14 the key outcomes of our 
people strategy included:

• Implementation of a new operating 
model – aimed to drive increased 
efficiency and a more accountable 
and responsive culture

• Activities to support leadership 
development capability – in order to 
deliver outcomes relevant to current 
and future business needs

• A fair and balanced outcome for our 
employees, our company and the 
broader community through two 
Enterprise Agreements – this 
positive achievement is directly 
attributed to the efforts by all parties

• Being ranked as the 30th Top 
Graduate Employer in Australia by 
the Australian Association of 
Graduate Employers Ltd 

• Improvement in our Indigenous 
employment by 29 per cent. This 
position will be further strengthened 
by the inclusion of an Indigenous 
Apprenticeship and entry level 
pathway program

• An increase in the representation of 
women in non-traditional operational 
roles, through the employment of a 
number of new female apprentices 
and graduates. 

Recognition programs remain a high 
priority in ensuring the wellness of our 
people and outstanding efforts are 
recognised. The peer-assessed 
program ‘Bright Sparks’ is Western 
Power’s way of formally recognising 
individuals and teams who excel in 
working towards reaching our  
shared goals.

Western Power’s diverse workforce 
is highly skilled and our capabilities 
stretch from electrical engineering, 
administration and functional 
support services to numerous 
technical trades. Understanding 
how we are evolving as a business 
and how we need to adapt to meet 
our customers’ requirements, 
means that we are able to optimise 
employee development.

This integrated approach to shaping 
the organisation, developing talent and 
fostering communication has led to a 
more engaged workforce and will best 
position Western Power to meet 
stakeholder, market and customer 
needs.
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OPERATING STRUCTURE

The Executive-led implementation of a 
new operating model in 2013 is the 
foundation in achieving our five year 
strategy. The operating model sets out 
the way Western Power achieves our 
business objectives and the work we 
do. It covers the functions, the 
governance, the technology we use 
and the way our service is provided to 
our customers.

The new organisational structure is 
designed to better support the field 
workforce and meet changing 
customer needs. It is underpinned by 
an innovative operating model that 
provides an end-to-end view of 
Western Power’s business with a 
streamlined governance framework 
that improves accountability, 
leadership and decision making. 

Western Power’s new structure 
involves six Business Units headed  
up by Executive Managers. 

Western Power Executive team 
Standing from left: Stewart Hart, Chief Financial Officer; Cameron Parrotte, Executive 
Manager, Network Planning and Operations; John Pease, General Counsel.  
Seated: André Botha, Chief Operating Officer; Simon Walsh, Executive Manager,  
Corporate Services; Dave Fyfe, Executive Manager, Process Performance and  
Paul Italiano, Chief Executive Officer.  

WORKFORCE NUMBERS

Overall, Western Power employee 
numbers remained steady for 2013-14. 
As we implemented our new operating 
model in line with building a more 
sustainable business, a number of 
roles within the business were 
identified as no longer being required. 

Affected employees were offered 
redeployment opportunities where 
possible. We also would like to thank 
those who left the business as part  
of this process for their efforts and 
contributions. There was also a 
resultant reduction in senior 
management, with the Executive team 
reduced from nine to seven members, 

Senior Leaders from 47 to 26 and Area 
Managers from 171 to 111 people.

The conclusion of the Future Grid 
Alliance Agreement in April this year 
saw the successful transition of 220 
Transfield Services employees to 
Western Power. This relates to our 
customer-funded work. Insourcing this 
work will result in lower capital 
contributions from our customers due 
to reduced overheads. Along with no 
impact on our customer service 
standards, it is expected that the 
ceased program will deliver savings in 
excess of $55 million over the next five 
years for customer-funded works.

2012/13 2013/14

Number of 
employees 
(headcount)10 

3,421 3,56511

Number of 
embedded 
contractors12 

305 161

Total 3,726 3,726

10 Includes casual employees who are on payroll 
as at 30 June 2014. Also includes employees 
on leave (paid or unpaid). Board members are 
not classified as employees but are included in 
Western Power’s diversity statistics.

11 Includes 220 employees insourced from the 
Future Grid Alliance.

12 This figure is in addition to the number of 
Western Power employees. This is defined as 
the headcount of active embedded contractors 

as at 30 June.

Chief Executive Officer

Paul Italiano

Process 
Performance

Strategy, 
Regulation and 

Finance

Network 
Planning and 
Operations

Works 
Management

Corporate 
Services

Legal and 
Governance

Dave Fyfe Stewart Hart Cameron Parrotte André Botha Simon Walsh John Pease
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DIVERSITY

Western Power recognises that a 
diverse workforce, reflective of the 
wider community it serves and 
represents, is better able to 
understand and meet the needs of 
their customers.

It is essential to our success that we 
harness and leverage the advantages 
of individual differences in the 
workplace and value diversity and 
inclusion for all employees. 

The commitment to diversity in our 
workforce remains a strong focus for 
Western Power. The strategies aimed 
at achieving our diversity targets 
(including gender) are actively 
managed through our Diversity and 
Inclusion Strategy. This strategy is 
endorsed in accordance with the Equal 
Opportunity Act and supports Western 
Power in the achievement of its 
corporate objectives through the 
attraction, retention and engagement 
of a wide variety of people with 
individual skills, experiences and 
perspectives.

Diversity information is based on the 
category defined and is a percentage 
of the total workforce. Data is captured 
on commencement of employment 
and is voluntary. Diversity information 
is not captured for embedded 
contractors. 

DISABILITY ACCESS AND 
INCLUSION 

Western Power continues to 
strengthen and build on its Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP). 
Focus in 2013-14 has been on 
ensuring our physical assets comply 
with our DAIP, and strengthening 
internal and external networks to 
promote diversity and inclusion 
awareness. 

An example of this is the construction 
of Western Power’s new Jerramungup 
site (including new offices and wash 
point) which adheres to the principles 
and goals set out in our DAIP, including 
access and egress points. 

While employment of people with a 
disability has remained steady over the 
past year, we have initiated a 
dedicated strategy for the engagement 
of employees with a disability. This 
includes the establishment of a 
network of disability service providers 
that we meet with regularly and host a 
quarterly Disability Services 
Commission WA Focus Group with 
other similar companies. 

13 Defined as Executive Managers and Heads of 
Function (including CEO)

14 Defined as Area Managers and Team Leaders 
(Previously referred to as Managers and 
Supervisors)

Male Female

Voluntarily self-reported

Indigenous 
Australians

People with a 
disability

Numbers on Board 5 1 0 0

Senior Leadership Team13 (including CEO) 31 2 0 1

Formal Leaders14 260 70 1 2

Professional employees 982 363 4 13

Business support employees 83 352 4 10

Operational employees 1,407 15 22 17

Total
2,768 803

31 43
3,571
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Western Power has also adopted the 
International Association for Public 
Participation core values as its 
overarching guiding principles for 
community engagement. 

This means we actively seek 
community and stakeholder input 
on future project and planning 
options.

This customer-oriented approach is 
supported by systems, processes and 
the people that deliver them. 

Our commitment to early engagement 
on major infrastructure projects 
provides the opportunity to work with 
communities to inform the design of 
infrastructure and the decision-making 
process. It also provides an informed 
assessment of the different options 
available to meet the community’s 
current and anticipated power needs.

Western Power’s successful 
community initiatives undertaken this 
year include: 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

In direct response to Western 
Power’s transition to a more 
customer-oriented business, we 
adopted a more structured 
approach to engaging with the 
local communities in which we 
operate. The values of Western 
Power underpin all of our 
community interaction and link 
back to our purpose and 
orientation.

Our aim is to become part of the 
community. We achieve this by 
generating a better understanding of 
Western Power’s operating 
environment, and creating 
opportunities to gain a better 
understanding of the communities’ 
needs – helping us to better align our 
performance with customers’ 
expectations.

• Emergency bushfire and storm 
response utilising the Western 
Power Community Caravan

• Identification and participation in 
targetted public events and activities 
to reach a diverse range of 
customers – tailoring content to align 
with individual community needs

• Regional community information 
forums to provide an update of the 
work undertaken in local areas, and 
listen to and address community 
concerns

• Education forums on vegetation 
management, land access, bushfire 
and storm preparedness

• Regular meetings with local 
government representatives across 
our network to create a greater 
understanding of Western Power’s 
strategic intent and address 
community concerns in a timely 
manner.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT 

Western Power has a strong 
reputation as an essential service 
provider – becoming more visible 
in times of hardship such as 
storms and bushfires. 

However, our customer touch points 
are not typical, as long lead investments 
and business decisions have long term 
implications that present challenges in 
short term engagements. We recognise 
that relationship building and ongoing 
community investment is essential to 
support our overarching purpose of 
providing safe, reliable and affordable 
electricity to Western Australians. 

We undertook a review of our holistic 
community investment program this 
year, including the incorporation of the 
benefit of insights from our regular 
involvement with London 
Benchmarking Group (LBG). The year 
ahead will see significant changes as 
we look to strengthen our support for 
local communities, creating tangible 
partnerships to deliver social and 
economic benefits.

SPONSORSHIP AND DONATIONS 

Western Power’s sponsorship and 
donation plan supports a range of 
community programs and tangibly 
demonstrates our commitment to 
putting customers’ interests at the heart 
of our business. To this end we aim to:

• Link sponsorship and philanthropic 
efforts to our broader corporate and 
social responsibility activities that are 
aligned with, and maximise value for, 
Western Power’s strategic intent, 
values and business objectives

• Benchmark our performance against 
our peers around the world, 
endeavouring to deliver best-
practice

• Strengthen employee morale, 
retention, recruiting and corporate 
ownership by involving Western 
Power employees where possible

• Operate a continuous improvement 
model with regular feedback, 
evaluation, review and adjustment as 
required.
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Throughout the year, new work 
practice instructions were 
implemented to strengthen the 
management of contaminated soil, 
dewatering and biosecurity risks. 
Audits were also conducted to provide 
assurance of the Environmental 
Management System.

Our Environmentally Sensitive Areas 
program provided supplementary 
management to more than 350 sites 
this year. These areas require 
additional protection, such as rare 
flora, threatened ecological 
communities and organic farms. The 
areas are clearly marked in the field 
and within the business IT systems to 
ensure our impact is minimised. In 
2013-14 Western Power sought 
registration of an additional 28 
Environmentally Sensitive Areas, which 
demonstrates our ongoing 
commitment in this area.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Accessing private property is an 
everyday activity to ensure the safe 
and reliable operation of the network. 

The two major concerns for Western 
Australian landowners and occupiers 
are biosecurity and notification prior to 
access. To address these concerns we 
established a working group and 
introduced a biosecurity initiative to 
assist staff and contractors in 
complying with work practices when 
they access land. 

During the year, six significant 
environmental incidents were reported 
to, and managed effectively in liaison 
with the WA Department of 
Environment Regulation (DER) and WA 
Department of Parks and Wildlife 
(DPAW). These incidents involved 
either hydrocarbon spills or damage to 
native vegetation. We reported five 
additional sites to the DER under the 
Contaminated Sites Act and continue 
to manage our obligations to the 
required level under the Act.

Western Power is subject to strict 
environmental regulation at both a 
state and national level. Our 
objective is to manage and 
minimise environmental risks that 
are an unavoidable part of our 
daily operations, with an ultimate 
goal of zero harm to the 
environment.
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Western Power received two 
Commendations for environmental 
works carried out over the past year. 
These included:

1. WA Department of the Premier 
and Cabinet for our contribution to 
the whole-of-government initiative 
regarding the Strategic Assessment 
for the Perth and Peel regions. This 
work covers strategic infrastructure 
planning for a 20-year period and 
provides the framework for 
subsequent environmental 
approvals.

2. DER, Shire of Mundaring and the 
Helena River Catchment Group 
for completion of quality work on the 
Beelu National Park vegetation offset 
– a condition of the environmental 
approval for works at Sawyers Valley 
zone substation.

The WA Minister for Environment 
granted the Environmental Protection 
(Western Power Electrical Distribution 
Transformer Noise Emissions) Approval 
2014 following consultation between 
Western Power, the Urban 

Development Institute of Australia (WA) 
and the DER. 

This approval is a positive outcome 
for the regulator, Western Power 
and our customers as it balances 
infrastructure and environmental 
requirements for new 
developments while avoiding cost 
increases that would adversely 
affect housing affordability. 

As conditions of the approval, Western 
Power will purchase low noise 
transformers and implement a design 
guideline to avoid significant noise 
impacts. Noise mitigation works have 
also progressed on our transmission 
substations, with barrier walls installed at 
the Gosnells, Morley and Rockingham 
substations during the year.

In a first for the business, Western 
Power contributed towards a University 
of Western Australia research project 
to erect a possum bridge across a 
roadway in Busselton to help protect 
the ring tailed possum. The ring tailed 
possum was classified as an 
endangered species in 2013.
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• Net cash flows from operational and 
investment activities were negative 
$649.4 million

• Cash deficit was largely financed by 
new borrowings, reflecting the 
$645.3 million increase to $6.83 
billion

• Capital investment at $1.18 billion 
was 12 per cent higher than the 
previous year – delivering to target 
and meeting the challenges set by 
both the ERA and State Government

• Active management of the debt 
portfolio and favourable movements 
in market interest rates resulted in a 
lower weighted average cost debt 
than 2012-13

• Return on assets was 2.4 per cent 
– a slight decrease on the previous 
year

• In April we ceased the Future Grid 
Alliance – delivering in excess of $55 
million savings over the next five 
years for customer-funded works.

During the year we identified $352 
million in operating expenditure 
savings compared to the third Access 
Arrangement financial proposal for the 
five year period 2012-13 to 2016-17. 
Since the ERA’s further final decision, 
we also identified $1.55 billion of total 
savings and reductions in planned 
asset investment. 

The $1.55 billion in capital savings has 
been offset by the need to invest $1.09 
billion in the period to 2016-17 on 
replacing or treating ageing network 
assets that have been identified as 
posing a serious risk to the public. If 
the decision was made to accept the 
risk associated with these assets, we 
could achieve the $1.55 billion 
reduction.

Our financial performance built on 
the improvement achieved last 
year. The following points 
summarise our strong 
performance for the year: 

• Higher Revenue resulting from the 
ERA-approved network tariff 
increases, approximately half of 
which is to offset the increase in 
Western Power’s payments to the 
State Government’s tariff 
equalisation fund (TEC) for the 
benefit of Horizon Power

• Lower operating expenditure 
(excluding restructuring costs) of 
$27.4 million

• Higher net profit after tax (NPAT) at 
$202.9 million was six per cent 
higher than the previous year

• Higher normalised net profit after 
tax at $97 million was four per cent 
higher than the previous year
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PROFIT

Net profit after tax at $202.9 million 
was six per cent higher than the 
previous year as a result of:

• Higher tariff revenue due to higher 
network tariffs approved by the ERA

• Increased customer contributions for 
network projects and assets gifted 
to Western Power

• Reduced operating expenditure 
through efficiency measures and 
restructuring (further details provided 
under Operating costs section).

The above was partially offset by 
increases in:

• Loss on disposal relating to network 
assets being taken out of service

• TEC attributable to an increase in 
the subsidy Western Power collects 
on behalf of Horizon Power

• Depreciation and interest combined 
increased by seven per cent, in line 
with an increase in capital 
investment and higher borrowing 
levels

• Tax increased by 12 per cent as a 
result of higher earnings before tax.

Improvements in performance resulted 
in higher profit which is distributed to 
the State Government by way of tax 
and dividend payments.

NORMALISED PROFIT

Net profit after tax as a profitability 
measure overstates our performance 
due to the inclusion of gifted assets 
from developers and customer 
contributions. As required by the 
applicable account standard (AASB 
Interpretation 18 – Transfers of Assets 
from Customers) these contributions 

are immediately recognised as 
revenue. The normalised profit 
measure removes the effect of these 
contributions and reflects the profit of 
the business. 

As per the table below, normalised 
profit increased by $4 million - driven 
by efficiency initiatives reducing 
operating expenditure and tariff 
revenue increases.
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Reconciliation of Statutory Profit to Normalised Profit

$ million 2012/13 2013/14

Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) 191 203

Capital Contribution Revenue 177 191

Less Depreciation 37 41

Profit Before Tax 140 151

Less Tax Expense 42 45

Adjustment to NPAT from Capital Contributions 98 106

Normalised Profit After Tax 93 97
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The chart below highlights the 
continued decline in average 
residential consumption and the 
increase in the number of residential 
customers. The lower consumption is 
attributable to factors such as 
increased energy awareness and 
education, continued uptake of solar 
PV systems, higher electricity prices, 
the evolution in technology and 
affordability of energy efficient 
appliances.

OPERATIONAL COST

Improving operating cost performance 
is a central platform of our strategy to 
provide affordable delivery of electricity 
to our customers. Importantly, our 
customers expect this service to be 
safe and reliable which drives the mix 
of our operating expenditure. This mix 
has not changed materially over the 
year, with 28 per cent focused on 

network safety programs and 45 per 
cent spent on corrective and 
preventative network maintenance.

As shown in the chart above, total 
operating expenditure for the year was 
$7.4 million lower, embedding 
sustainable year-on-year reductions as 
part of our cost conscious culture. This 
result is notable given 2013-14 includes 
$21.5 million of one-off restructuring 
costs resulting from the 
implementation of our new operating 
model and labour rate increases. 
These reductions enabled Western 
Power to meet the ERA operating cost 
efficiency target for a second 
consecutive year.

To drive efficiency across our works 
program we implemented a 
consolidation of the capital and 
operating expenditure programs within 
a geographical zone. This resulted in 
improved scheduling and more 
efficient use of skilled resources by 
only accessing areas once – delivering 
a cost reduction of $22.6 million.

The new organisational structure and 
operating model has resulted in lower 
business support operating costs of 
$2.9 million. A further improvement in 
our planning process and the 
implementation of increased 
standardisation has ensured lower 
design costs, saving $7.5 million. 
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REVENUE

Network tariff revenue accounts for 
approximately 81 per cent of total 
income. Revenue from infrastructure 
gifted by developers upon connecting 
to the network (non-cash) and cash 
contributions for network 
augmentation not shared by tariff 
customers, contributed 11 per cent. 
The remaining 8 per cent relates to 
unregulated activities such as the sale 
of materials to third parties and other 
ancillary services.

Tariff revenue increased by 9 per cent 
due to the ERA-approved network 
tariff increases that came into effect on 
1 September 2013 – half of which was 
attributable to an increase in the TEC 
subsidy Western Power collects on 
behalf of Horizon Power. This increase 
was partially offset by a 1.3 per cent 
reduction in total energy consumption. 
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CASH FLOW HIGHLIGHTS

This year saw a net borrowing increase 
of $645.3 million, bringing total 
borrowings to $6,833.3 million with 
borrowing (interest) costs increasing by 
$11 million for the year to a total of 
$323 million.

The weighted average cost of the 
borrowings portfolio decreased by 20 
basis points to 5.15 per cent at 30 
June 2014 (5.35 per cent at 30 June 
2013). This was a result of the 
implementation of the Board-approved 
interest rate risk management 
approach for our third Access 
Arrangement, together with active 
management of the portfolio to take 
advantage of favourable market 
conditions.

ASSETS

During the year we met our 
commitment to deliver our capital 
works program, which focused on:

• Improving public safety

• Facilitating State growth by 
connecting new customers

• Maintaining customer reliability 
service levels. 

The increase in capital expenditure in 
2013-14 is reflected in the graph with 
Total Assets now exceeding $9 billion. 
Return on Assets (net profit after tax 
divided by average total assets) was 
2.4 per cent in 2013-14 – slightly down 
on last year. 
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OUR REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The Electricity Industry Act 2004 (the 
Act) provides for the operation of the 
Wholesale Electricity Market and the 
development of the Electricity 
Networks Access Code 2004. The Act 
grants the ERA responsibility for 
electricity industry licensing, access 
regime administration and electricity 
market surveillance. 

The Act also outlines the requirements 
for how we establish Western Power’s 
Board and Chief Executive Officer, and 
the terms of our relationship to our 
Minister.

The ERA is an independent body of 
the State Government that regulates 
Western Power from an economic 
perspective. The ERA ensures that, as 
a natural monopoly, Western Power 
provides an efficient and effective 
electricity distribution and transmission 
network service to customers.

Western Power is also subject to 
regulation by other government 
agencies, such as EnergySafety and 

the Department of Environment 
Regulation (formerly part of the 
Department of Environment and 
Conservation).

COMPLIANCE

The 2013 independent audit of Western 
Power’s systems for monitoring 
compliance with the quality and 
reliability standards outlined in the 
Electricity Industry (Network Quality and 
Reliability of Supply) Code 2005 did not 
identify any areas for improvement. 

As a testament to our strong 
commitment to keep our customers 
safe, Western Power did not record 
any breaches of Type 1 compliance 
obligations during the 2013-14 financial 
year.

Our culture of continuous improvement 
led to the introduction of appropriate 
policies, systems and processes to 
strengthen compliance with our 
operating licences. The business has 
returned to the standard 24-month 
cycle of key regulatory audits.

Western Power is regulated by the 
Economic Regulation Authority 
(ERA). The ERA approves Western 
Power’s access arrangements 
which cover prices, services, 
policies and terms and conditions 
for access to the Western Power 
Network for a set period of time.

The 2013-14 financial year is the 
second year of Western Power’s third 
Access Arrangement. A key challenge 
is ensuring Western Power’s tariffs 
recover each year’s designated 
revenue allowance. 

On 19 May 2014, the ERA approved 
Western Power’s price list for the 
2014-15 financial year. The average 
price increase is 4.83 per cent, 
consistent with the average network 
price increase published in the ERA’s 
decision to vary Western Power’s 
access arrangement on 4 June 2013. 
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE

Indicator Description
Actual  

13/14
Target 

13/14
Status

Safe

Total Recordable lnjury Frequency Rate (TRIFR) 7.6  9

Public safety incidents15 16.5 < 9.5

Number of wood poles reinforced 67,641  55,800

Number of wood poles replaced 23,711  18,550

Reliable

Supply unavailable over a year 386  650 mins

Number of interruptions greater than 60 seconds per year 2.45  2.94

Mid West Energy Project (stage 1) 3301KV line  
energised on schedule16

Dec 2014 Jun 2014

Affordable

Average cost per connection (including TEC)17 $1.161  $1.180

Average cost per connection (excluding TEC) $963  $988

Return on assets 2.4%  1.8%

Charter compliance 97%  90%

Customer experience - mass market 78%  78%

Organisation effectiveness inventory 69%  77%

Western Power’s performance is tracked against 
key performance indicators. The following table 
provides a summary of Western Power’s 
performance as at 30 June 2014.

15 Safe: The increase in public safety incidents was associated with both 
asset-related and interference incidents

16 Reliable: The Mid West Energy Project (stage 1) is forecast to be under budget. 
However, energisation is behind schedule due to a significant safety incident 
and adverse weather conditions

17 TEC – Tariff Equalisation Contribution – the subsidy Western Power collects on 
behalf of Horizon Power

 Performance is currently on, or better than target

 Performance is currently behind target

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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The directors of Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) present this report in 
accordance with Schedule 4, clause 6, of the Electricity Corporations Act (Act).

WESTERN POWER’S DIRECTORS 

The following persons were directors of Western Power during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and up to the date of 
this report:

Name Duration

Alan Mulgrew (Board Chair) From 21/08/2012

John Cahill (Board Deputy Chair) From 01/08/2009

George Cash From 27/07/2010

Mervyn Davies From 01/04/2006

Paul Underwood  From 25/05/2009

Sue Wilson From 28/12/2012

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Director Experience
Committee 
responsibilities

Alan Mulgrew 
BA (UQ) 
GAICD 
P/Grad (Fin/Strat) 
Justice of the Peace

Year of birth: 1946

Board Chair 
Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 21/08/2012, current term expires on 
20/08/2015. 

Experience and expertise

Mr Mulgrew served for 30 years as a senior executive heading up large 
capital intensive organisations, both in Australia and overseas - 
including Perth and Sydney airports.

On establishing his own corporate advisory company, Mr Mulgrew has 
provided strategic advice to numerous major institutions, primarily in 
development and implementation of major infrastructure projects.

Mr Mulgrew has been a chairman and non-executive director on a 
number of high profile boards spanning transportation, energy, mining, 
infrastructure and government. Previous directorships include Western 
Carbon, Tourism WA, Australian Renewable Fuels, Doric Contractors, 
Western Power Corporation and Sydney Airport (interim Board).

Current directorships: Non-executive director of Adelaide Airport Ltd 
(since September 2006), Tesla Corporation Pty Ltd (since August 2008) 
and Queensland Airports Limited (since March 2013). 

P&PC member

John Cahill 
B.Bus 
GradDipBus  
FCPA 
GAICD

Year of birth: 1956

Deputy Board Chair 
Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 01/08/2009, current term expired on 
31/07/2014. In accordance with the Act, Mr Cahill remains in office until 
either he resigns or is replaced.

Experience and expertise

Mr Cahill has more than 25 years’ experience working in the energy 
utility sector in the areas of finance, treasury, accounting and risk 
management. He was the Chief Executive Officer of Alinta Infrastructure 
Holdings Ltd between 2005 and February 2007 and prior to that, he 
was the Chief Financial Officer of Alinta Ltd and its predecessors from 
1994.

Current directorships: Non-executive director of Emeco Holdings Ltd 
(since September 2008, also Chair of its Audit & Risk Committee) and 
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board (since 
February 2014), a member of the Edith Cowan University (ECU) Council 
(since August 2011, also Chair of its Resources Committee) and a 
member of the ECU Foundation Board (since January 2011).

F&RC Chair 
P&PC member

Information on directors

Legend 
NED = Non-executive director 
F&RC = Finance & Risk Committee 
P&PC = People & Performance Committee
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Director Experience
Committee 
responsibilities

Hon. George Cash AM 
LLB (Hons) 
LLM 
B.Bus 
FCSA 
FCIS

Year of birth: 1946

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 27/07/2010, current term expires on 
14/10/2016.

Experience and expertise

Hon. George Cash was a member of the Western Australian Parliament 
for nearly 25 years. He is a former Minister for Mines; Minister for Lands; 
Minister assisting the Minister for Public Sector Management; Minister 
assisting the Minister for Resources Development; Leader of the 
Government in the Legislative Council and President of the Legislative 
Council.

He is also a former Chairman of the Australian and New Zealand 
Minerals and Energy Council.

Current directorships: Not currently a director of any other entity. 

P&PC Chair

Mervyn Davies 
B.E (Hons) 
M.Eng.Sc 
B.Comm

Year of birth: 1944

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 01/04/2006, current term expired on 
20/08/2014. In accordance with the Act, Mr Davies remains in office 
until either he resigns or is replaced.

Experience and expertise

Mr Davies has worked in all areas of electricity distribution and has 
extensive experience in managing both the financial and technical 
performance of the business. He has previously held senior 
management positions at Energy Australia (now Ausgrid), Australia’s 
largest electricity distribution company. Since leaving Energy Australia, 
Mr Davies has established and operated an engineering consultancy 
practice, specialising in the engineering and economics of the electricity 
distribution industry. He currently holds directorships in electricity 
distribution businesses in Western Australia, Queensland and 
Tasmania. He holds honours and masters degrees in engineering and a 
Bachelor of Commerce (economics).

Current directorships: Non-executive director of ENERGEX Limited 
(since July 2012), TasNetworks (since April 2014) and Power and Water 
Corporation Northern Territory (since April 2014). Director of Anrig Pty 
Ltd (since March 2004, also Board Chair) and Girna Engineering 
Management Services Pty Ltd (since December 1983, also Board 
Chair). 

F&RC member

DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
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Director Experience
Committee 
responsibilities

Paul Underwood 
B.Bus 
ACA 
GradDipAppFin

Year of birth: 1955

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 25/05/2009, current term expires on 
20/08/2015.

Experience and expertise

Mr Underwood is a chartered accountant with over 30 years’ experience 
in chartered accounting, corporate advisory and oil and gas exploration/
production. He was the founding Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer of Tap Oil Limited, an oil and gas exploration and production 
company supplying gas to power generators in Western Australia. He 
has considerable experience in the Western Australian energy markets. 
Mr Underwood was also a board member and Vice Chairman of the 
Australian Petroleum Producers Association between 1998 and 2006, 
an industry representation group engaged with government on energy 
policy matters. He is currently executive Chair of Triple Energy Ltd, an oil 
and gas company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

Mr Underwood has particular experience in business solutions, investor 
relations, strategy and corporate governance. In 2003, Mr Underwood 
won the Ernst and Young Entrepreneur of the Year Award for Western 
Australia.

Current directorships: Executive director of Triple Energy Ltd (since 
February 2012, also Board Chair) and Board member, Alliance 
Francaise de Perth. 

F&RC member

Susan Wilson 
B Juris 
LLB 
FAICD 
FGIA

Year of birth: 1960

Independent, NED

Appointed with effect from 28/12/2012, current term expires on 
27/12/2015.

Experience and expertise

Ms Wilson is an experienced board director as a previous non-executive 
director of Western Power, previous executive director of Bankwest and 
Chair of the WA Optometrists Board. She has particular expertise in 
strategy, stakeholder management including dealing with regulators and 
government, legal and governance. She had a successful career in the 
finance industry as a senior executive at Bankwest and HBOS Australia.

Current directorships: A member of the Curtin University Council (since 
May 2013 and also member of its Audit & Risk Committee) and a Fellow of 
the Governance Institute of Australia (GIA), formerly Chartered Secretaries 
Australia (also Deputy Chairman of the WA State Council of GIA).

P&PC member

Directors who resigned/retired during the financial year

No directors have resigned or retired during the financial year.
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WESTERN POWER’S PRINCIPAL 
ACTIVITIES

The principal continuing functions of 
Western Power are:

• To manage, plan, develop, expand, 
enhance, improve and reinforce the 
electricity transmission and 
distribution network known as the 
South West Interconnected System

• To provide and improve electricity 
transmission and distribution 
services

• To provide access to services of 
network infrastructure facilities as 
required and authorised by Part 8 of 
the Electricity Industry Act (which 
relates to network access)

• To provide services as required and 
authorised by Part 9 of the Electricity 
Industry Act (which relates to the 
wholesale electricity market)

• To provide services that improve the 
efficiency of electricity supply and 
the management of demand on 
electricity transmission and 
distribution systems

• To provide ancillary services.

In performing its functions, Western 
Power must act in accordance with 
prudent commercial principles and 
endeavour to make a profit consistent 
with maximising its long-term value.

There have been no changes in the 
nature of Western Power’s principal 
activities during the financial year 
ended 30 June 2014.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Information on the operations and 
financial position of Western Power 
and its business strategies is 
presented in the ‘corporate snapshot’ 
and ‘operational and financial review’ 
sections of this annual report.

WESTERN POWER’S OPERATING 
RESULTS

Western Power achieved a profit after 
income tax equivalent of $202.946 
million for the financial year ended 30 
June 2014 (30 June 2013: $191.334 
million). 

Western Power’s net cash flows from 
operational and investment activities 
(including borrowing costs and 
distributions to/from owner) were 
negative $649.438 million (30 June 
2013: negative $674.569 million). This 
cash deficit was largely financed by 
new debt reflecting the $645.270 
million increase in borrowings from 
$6,188.044 million as at 30 June 2013 
to $6,833.314 million as at 30 June 
2014 (30 June 2013: $713.270 million 
increase in borrowings). 

DIVIDENDS

Western Power paid a final dividend of 
$124.395 million on 31 December 2013 
in respect of the financial year ended 
30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: $102.135 
million paid on 31 December 2012). 

Since the end of the reporting period 
the directors have recommended, 
subject to the approval of the Minister 
for Energy (Minister), the payment of a 
final dividend of $131.915 million in 
respect of the financial year ended 30 
June 2014.

REPORT NO. 14 OF THE 
STANDING COMMITTEE ON 
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION

Following publication of report no. 14 
(‘Unassisted Failure’) by the Standing 
Committee on Public Administration 
(Standing Committee) in January 2012, 
Western Power initiated a detailed 
action plan designed to address the 
Standing Committee’s feedback.

In the 2014 financial year, 23,711 wood 
poles were replaced and 67,641 
reinforced (compared to 17,432 and 
48,479 in the 2013 financial year, 
respectively).

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Nil. 

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND 
EXPECTED RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS

Likely developments in the operations 
of Western Power that were not 
finalised at the date of this financial 
report include the matters set out 
below.

Access Arrangement 3 and 
ongoing funding 

Western Power’s access arrangement 
for the third regulatory period (AA3) 
was approved by the Economic 
Regulation Authority (ERA) on 29 
November 2012. The AA3:

• covers the five year period from 1 
July 2012 to 30 June 2017

• includes regulated capital 
expenditure totalling $5.8 billion 
(excluding gifted assets) and 
regulated operating expenditure 
totalling $2.6 billion

• establishes service performance 
targets and network tariffs and 
charges that, in the ERA’s opinion, 
are appropriate for the Western 
Australian community.

The ERA’s AA3 determination 
represents a major efficiency challenge 
for Western Power.

The 2012/13 State budget mid-year 
review confirmed funding for regulated 
capital expenditure of $4.7 billion in 
respect of the AA3 period, including 
$1.6 billion for safety-related programs. 
However, the funding did not include 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
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Western Power’s request for full levels 
of the AA3 capital expenditure in 
2016/17 and the AA3 levels of 
non-growth capital expenditure over 
the forward estimates period. The 
State Government deferred 
consideration of the additional capital 
investment related to AA3 until a future 
time, subject to the submission of 
suitable business cases.

Since the commencement of the AA3 
period, Western Power has identified 
$1.6 billion of reductions in planned 
asset investment through the 
development and implementation of 
key strategic initiatives.

As part of the 2014/15 State budget 
process, Western Power requested 
$1.1 billion of capital expenditure over 
the period 2013/14 to 2016/17 to 
replace or treat ageing network assets 
and to meet the following obligations 
and commitments:

• EnergySafety inspector’s order 
01-2009 in relation to management 
of Western Power’s wood pole 
network

• State Government’s commitments in 
its response to Parliament on the 
recommendations set out in the 
Standing Committee’s report no. 14 
(‘Unassisted Failure’) 

• Delivery of the safety and reliability 
commitments included in AA3.

Western Power submitted four 
business cases for capital expenditure 
to the Minister for consideration. 
Conscious of the affordability of 
electricity for the Western Australian 
community, Western Power 
constrained the capital expenditure 
amount requested in these four 
business cases to the total capital 
expenditure allowed for in AA3. As a 
result there is no increase on network 
tariffs arising from the approval of 
these four business cases.

Of the $1.1 billion proposed by 
Western Power, the State Government 
endorsed $113 million, deferring 
consideration of the remainder of the 
proposed capital expenditure until the 
2015/16 State budget process.

In 2013/14, Western Power invested 
significantly in key safety programs. 
The primary focus of activity in the 
safety capital expenditure categories 
was to target network risk to reduce 
the risk of harm to people, property 
and the environment. So as to not 
exceed Western Power’s approved 
2013/14 asset investment program 
(AIP) expenditure allocation allowed for 
in the State budget, Western Power 
was required to reprioritise capital 
expenditure from non-safety funding 
categories including from growth 
related expenditure. This 
reprioritisation did not have an impact 
on State net debt.

The 2014/15 State budget also 
included a five per cent reduction in 
the cost of delivering asset investment 
programs across the forward 
estimates period for the whole of 
government. As a result, Western 
Power will be required to reduce its 
network-related asset investment 
expenditure by $186.9 million across 
the forward estimates, with a $43.1 
million reduction to be delivered in 
2014/15.

Without additional funding there is an 
increased prospect that the safety and 
reliability outcomes outlined in AA3 
may not be met. The business case 
process will continue to be the process 
for Western Power to seek State 
Government approval for increased 
funding as contemplated in the State 
budget process until the end of the 
AA3 period.

Asset management and public 
safety

Western Power has a vast electrical 
network with infrastructure that 
crosses both public and private 
property, above and below ground. 
Whilst an inherent risk exists in any 
electrical network, Western Power 
applies a prudent and diligent 
approach to managing the public 
safety risk associated with its assets.

With approximately 25% of Western 
Power’s wood poles located in 
‘extreme’ or ‘high’ bushfire risk areas, 
the potential for electricity network 
assets to ignite bushfires is one of the 
most significant public safety risks for 
the Western Power network. The 
potential for electric shock is also 
inherent in distribution network assets 
such as overhead customer service 
connections.

Western Power’s challenge is to 
maintain and replace these distribution 
assets in an orderly and appropriate 
manner to continue safe and reliable 
operations. In September 2013 
Western Power published its inaugural 
state of the infrastructure report, which 
provides further details of the 
challenge facing Western Power in its 
management of the risks inherent in 
the network assets.

During AA3, a primary focus will be on 
investing in activities that minimise the 
risk of harm to the public and reduce 
the potential for bushfires to be 
initiated by Western Power’s network 
assets. Details of Western Power’s 
proposed investment program to 
reduce the public safety risk can be 
found in Western Power’s AA3 
submission to the ERA.

Western Power is reliant on funding 
from its shareholder to meet these and 
any additional regulatory requirements.
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Impact on revenue due to 
changing customer consumption

Western Power’s network revenue is 
currently exposed to volume risk (the 
amount of electricity transported 
through the network) while maximum 
demand is the key driver of investment. 
Western Power charges electricity 
retailers a network tariff per unit of 
consumption to recover the total 
revenue approved by the ERA for the 
AA3 period.

There is a risk that Western Power will 
not recover the total revenue in any 
given year due to falling electricity 
consumption. This risk is contemplated 
in the regulatory framework and a 
correction to the network tariff is made 
in the following year.

Future volumes are likely to be affected 
by changing consumption patterns as 
a consequence of:

• consumers responding to increases 
in electricity prices

• a range of new technology including 
energy efficiency and photovoltaic 
systems

resulting in declining revenues.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

Amounts presented in the directors’ 
report have been rounded off to the 
nearest thousand dollars, unless 
otherwise stated.

COMPANY SECRETARY

John Pease LLM, Western Power’s 
General Counsel, has been practising 
law since the mid-1980s and has 
substantial commercial as well as 
dispute resolution experience in a 
broad range of areas, including 
intellectual property, banking and 
finance, debt recovery, insolvency, 
trade practices, higher education, 
energy and infrastructure. He also has 
substantial in-house legal practice 
management experience. Prior to 
joining Western Power, Mr Pease has 
practised as a barrister at Western 
Australia’s independent Bar and also 
held various in-house, private practice 
and government positions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

Western Power’s safety, health & 
environmental policy encompasses 
environmental management principles 
including compliance, minimising 
impact, preservation of biodiversity 
and empowering the workforce to 
identify and resolve situations that may 
be hazardous to the environment. 
Western Power sites are subject to 
State and Commonwealth 
environmental legislation and 
regulations, with some locations and 
projects covered by specific approval 
conditions and environmental licences 
and permits issued by the State.  

The Department of Environment 
Regulation (DER) has amended the 
environmental licence for the Kewdale 
oil stores and included a number of 
new and revised conditions. The major 
amendment to the licence requires a 
report on the site’s compliance with 
the Dangerous Goods Code of 
Practice alongside an improvement 
plan to address non-conformance. 
Western Power also holds a purpose 
permit to allow self-assessment for 
projects requiring clearing of native 
vegetation. The purpose (clearing) 
permit is subject to annual reporting 
and auditing conditions imposed by 
the DER. 

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

Details of the number of meetings of the Board (and of its committees) that directors were eligible to attend and the number 
of meetings attended by each of the directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 are as follows:

Board
People & Performance 

Committee
Finance &  

Risk Committee

Attendee Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

A Mulgrew 13 13 5 5 - 4*

J Cahill 13 13 5 5 7 7

G Cash 13 13 5 5 - 6*

M Davies 13 13 - 5* 7 7

P Underwood 13 13 - 1* 7 7

S Wilson 13 13 5 5 - 5*

* The director was not a member of the relevant committee, but attended as an invitee.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
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The Environmental Protection (Western 
Power Electrical Distribution 
Transformer Noise Emissions) Approval 
2014, approved by the Minister for 
Environment, was published in the 
Government Gazette on 6 May 2014. 

Western Power is required to report 
environmental incidents to its 
regulators. During the 2014 financial 
year Western Power reported to 
regulators six significant environmental 
incidents relating to oil spills and 
vegetation damage. All incidents have 
been remediated. 

Western Power has not been notified 
by the Western Australian Planning 
Commission or any other relevant 
planning bodies of any non-
compliance related to section 60(6) of 
the Act.  

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE OF 
OFFICERS

Western Power has entered into deeds 
of indemnity, insurance and access 
with each of the persons listed as 
directors. The respective deeds are 
identical and in the following terms:

• Western Power indemnifies the 
person against all liabilities and 
costs relating to proceedings that 
are anticipated, threatened or 
commenced against the director by 
reason of him or her being or having 
been a director of Western Power

• The indemnity does not extend to 
claims against the director by 
Western Power or a subsidiary, or to 
any liability or claim arising out of 
conduct involving a lack of good 
faith.

Western Power holds a directors’ and 
officers’ liability insurance policy. 
Subject to the terms and conditions of 
the policy, this cover will pay on behalf 
of Western Power (or its directors and 
officers), losses arising from a claim or 

claims made against them jointly or 
severally during the period of insurance 
by reason of any wrongful act (as 
defined by the policy) in the capacity of 
a director or officer of Western Power.

At the date of this report no claims 
have been made against the directors 
and officers component of the policy.

AUDITOR

Under the Act, the Auditor General for 
Western Australia has been appointed 
as Western Power’s independent 
auditor. The Auditor General Act 
provides that the auditor can conduct 
audits in the manner he or she sees fit 
and is not subject to direction by any 
person about the way in which those 
powers are exercised.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Neither the Office of the Auditor 
General nor his agent provided any 
non-audit services during the financial 
year ended 30 June 2014 (30 June 
2013: nil).

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

Subject to certain exceptions, the 
Freedom of Information Act (FOI Act) 
requires Western Power to provide 
access to its documents where an 
application for access is made. The 
FOI Act also requires Western Power 
to publish an up-to-date information 
statement about the corporation.

An up-to-date information statement, 
as well as a guide on how to make an 
application under the FOI Act are 
published on Western Power’s website 
and can be inspected free of cost at 
any time.

OBSERVANCE OF WESTERN 
POWER CODE OF CONDUCT 

Section 33 of the Act requires the 
Board to report to the Minister on the 
observance of Western Power’s code 
of conduct by members of staff. This 

report is required at the same time as 
delivering Western Power’s annual 
report.

The Board confirms that consistent 
with section 31 of the Act, the code of 
conduct was developed after 
consultation with the Commissioner for 
Public Sector Standards and was first 
adopted by the Board at its meeting on 
24 March 2006. The code of conduct 
has been amended from time to time.

The code of conduct has been 
circulated to Western Power’s 
employees and is available on the 
intranet for employee reference.

As permitted by the Act, the Board has 
delegated accountability through the 
Chief Executive Officer to formal 
leaders in Western Power to ensure 
observance of the standards of 
conduct and integrity by members of 
staff.

RECORD KEEPING 

Western Power maintains and 
supports quality record keeping 
practices in its day-to-day business 
activities. Records are managed 
according to the requirements of the 
State Records Act and Western 
Power’s approved record-keeping 
plan. Regular reviews are conducted of 
Western Power’s record-keeping 
systems, training and practices to 
ensure they are efficient and effective 
and reflect any new business 
requirements.

New staff and contractors are required 
to complete a compliance education 
program as well as attend compulsory 
training of the document management 
system. Training programs are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis to 
ensure they reflect any new business 
requirements. 
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ELECTORAL ACT (SECTION 175ZE)

In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act, the following expenditure was incurred by Western Power during the 
2014 financial year. The expenditure includes costs associated with public safety campaigns, the Future Energy Alliance, 
planned outage notifications, self-read meter mail outs and recruiting. 

Category Amount ($) Recipient Nature of work

Advertising agencies 263,197 Adcorp Australia Various including: notification of planned 
works and outages, staff recruitment and 
other media bookings

 174,074 Marketforce Public safety campaigns

 1,930,454 Brand Agency Public safety campaigns

 5,778 303 Advertising Group Future Energy Alliance

 5,486 Workhouse Advertising Customer communications materials

 85,101 Eight Steps West Communications

 111,865 Meerkats Community communications and 
measurement development

Sub-total 2,575,955 

Market research 155,200 Taylor Nelson Sofres Business market research

 20,000 Metrix Consulting Website research

 233,000 Ipsos (formerly Synovate) Various including: customer service research, 
education communication campaign research 
and analysis

Sub-total 408,200 

Direct mail organisations 657,491 Bing Technologies Notification of planned works

Sub-total 657,491 

Media advertising 83,930 Mitchells & Partners Public education communications media

 825,032 Optimum Media Decisions Public safety campaigns

Sub-total 908,962 

Total expenditure 4,550,608 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
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PRINCIPLES USED TO 
DETERMINE THE NATURE AND 
AMOUNT OF REMUNERATION 

Western Power’s remuneration policy 
is to: 

• Provide market competitive 
remuneration designed to attract, 
retain and motivate a skilled 
workforce with the capabilities and 
skills required to effectively achieve 
Western Power’s corporate 
objectives

• Adopt a commercial approach to the 
management of remuneration, 
including the capacity to pay, a clear 
governance framework and any 
associated risks

• Ensure employees are appropriately 
compensated according to the value 
of the work performed, the services 
they provide to the company and 
their personal performance.

Non-executive directors

The Minister approves the 
remuneration of all non-executive 

directors. The remuneration framework 
for non-executive directors 
incorporates a fixed remuneration and 
superannuation component. Non-
executive directors do not participate 
in any variable reward or ‘at-risk’ plan.

Chief Executive Officer and 
executives

The Minister approves changes to the 
Chief Executives Officer’s remuneration 
as recommended by the Board, via the 
People & Performance Committee who 
will seek external independent advice in 
forming its recommendations.

The Board approves the remuneration 
of the Chief Executive Officer’s direct 
reports following review and 
recommendations provided by the 
People & Performance Committee (on 
recommendation of the Chief 
Executive Officer). 

The Chief Executive Officer and 
executives remuneration framework is 
based upon a total remuneration 
approach that includes base salary, 
superannuation and benefits to reflect 

the level of work, accountability and 
personal competency in the role. This 
component may be delivered as a 
combination of cash and prescribed 
non-financial benefits at the individual’s 
discretion. Total remuneration is 
reviewed annually on the basis of 
competitive market movement and 
personal performance. The Chief 
Executive Officer and executives do 
not participate in any variable reward 
or ‘at-risk’ plan.

Remuneration for executives is 
reviewed annually to ensure the level is 
market competitive. There are no 
guaranteed remuneration increases 
included in any executive contracts.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

Non-executive directors

In accordance with clause 13(c) of the 
fourth schedule to the Act, details of 
the remuneration paid to current 
directors for the financial years ended 
30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014 are 
set out in the following table. 

Name
Financial 

year

Salary &  
fees 

$’000

Non-
monetary 

benefits 
$’000

Post-
employment 

super. benefits 
$’000

Other 
long-term 

benefits 
$’000

Termination 
benefits 

$’000

Total  
benefits 

$’000

A Mulgrew  
(from 21/08/2012)

2014 120 - 11 - - 131

2013 110 - 10 - - 120

J Cahill 2014 75 - 7 - - 82

2013 75 - 7 - - 82

G Cash 2014 43 - 22 - - 65

2013 48 - 24 - - 72

M Davies 2014 55 - 5 - - 60

2013 55 - 5 - - 60

P Underwood 2014 51 - 9 - - 60

2013 29 - 31 - - 60

S Wilson  
(from 28/12/2012)

2014 55 - 5 - - 60

2013 28 - 2 - - 30

Total 2014 399 - 59 - - 458

2013 345 - 79 - - 424

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REMUNERATION
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Five highest paid officers

In accordance with clause 13(c) of the fourth schedule to the Act, details of the nature and amount of each element of the 
remuneration paid to each of the five highest paid officers of Western Power during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 
are provided below. 

 2014 2013 
Total annual fixed remuneration1 $’000 $’000

P Italiano 489 475

S Hart 486 435

A Edgar2 272 -

F Mah2 174 -

S Iacopetta2 201 -

1.  This table shows the total annual fixed remuneration to which the respective individuals were entitled as at the reporting date.  

2.  Mr Edgar, Mr Mah and Mr Iacopetta were not in the highest paid officers of Western Power in 2013.

A reconciliation of the amounts paid to each of the five highest paid officers is provided in the individual tables below. 

 2014 2013  
P Italiano $’000 $’000

Total annual fixed remuneration (30 June) 489 475

Total annual fixed remuneration 489 475

This is reconciled to total remuneration paid as follows:

Salary & fees 444 431

Non-monetary benefits 20 20

Post-employment superannuation benefits 25 24

Total annual fixed remuneration 489 475

Annual pay period timing difference 2 -

Retrospective remuneration changes 2 26

Total remuneration paid 493 501

Long service leave accrual 12 11

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REMUNERATION CONTINUED
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 2014  2013 
S Hart $’000 $’000

Total annual fixed remuneration (30 June) 486 435

Adjustment for remuneration change (8) -

Total annual fixed remuneration 478 435

This is reconciled to total remuneration paid as follows:

Salary & fees 446 398

Non-monetary benefits 1 1

Post-employment superannuation benefits 31 36

Total annual fixed remuneration 478 435

Annual pay period timing difference 2 -

Total remuneration paid  480 435

Long service leave accrual  11 10

 2014 2013 
A Edgar (until 22/11/2013) $’000 $’000

Total annual fixed remuneration (30 June) 272 N/A

Adjustment for part year employment (163) N/A

Total annual fixed remuneration 109 N/A

This is reconciled to total remuneration paid as follows:

Salary & fees 58 N/A

Non-monetary benefits 1 N/A

Post-employment superannuation benefits 50 N/A

Total annual fixed remuneration 109 N/A

Superannuation employer contribution 3 N/A

Payment of accrued leave* 130 N/A

Payment of contractual notice* 277 N/A

Total remuneration paid  519 N/A

* The amounts paid to Mr Edgar are in line with his employment contract and are subject to taxation deductions required by law.
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 2014 2013 
F Mah (until 12/02/2014) $’000 $’000

Total annual fixed remuneration (30 June) 174 N/A

Adjustment for part year employment (66) N/A

Total annual fixed remuneration 108 N/A

This is reconciled to total remuneration paid as follows:

Salary & fees 74 N/A

Non-monetary benefits 1 N/A

Post-employment superannuation benefits 33 N/A

Total annual fixed remuneration 108 N/A

Superannuation employer contribution 3 N/A

Payment of accrued leave* 94 N/A

Payment of contractual notice* 295 N/A

Total remuneration paid 500 N/A

* The amounts paid to Mr Mah are in line with his employment contract and are subject to taxation deductions required by law.

 2014 2013 
S Iacopetta (until 18/10/2013) $’000 $’000

Total annual fixed remuneration (30 June) 201 N/A

Adjustment for part year employment (141) N/A

Total annual fixed remuneration 60 N/A

This is reconciled to total remuneration paid as follows:

Salary & fees 33 N/A

Non-monetary benefits - N/A

Post-employment superannuation benefits 27 N/A

Total annual fixed remuneration 60 N/A

Superannuation employer contribution 1 N/A

Payment of accrued leave* 64 N/A

Payment of contractual notice* 341 N/A

Total remuneration paid  466 N/A

* The amounts paid to Mr Iacopetta are in line with his employment contract and are subject to taxation deductions required by law.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REMUNERATION CONTINUED
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Remuneration paid to executive officers

Western Power provides the following additional disclosure in relation to remuneration paid to designated executive officers 
who were employed by the business as at 30 June in each year. 

 2014 2013 
Executive officers $’000 $’000

Total paid 2,747 3,282

 Number of executives officers
Total paid ($’000) 2014 2013

$  50 - $100 - -

$101 - $150 - 1

$151 - $200 - 1

$201 - $250 1 -

$251 - $300 - -

$301 - $350 - -

$351 - $400 4 2

$401 - $450 - 3

$451 - $500 2 -

$501 - $550 - 2

 7 9
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS 

Non-executive directors are subject to the duties and obligations prescribed by the Act. Under the Act, the Minister 
determines their remuneration. 

Directors’ appointments

Position Term of agreement

A Mulgrew, Board Chair &  
non-executive director

Appointed by the Governor of Western Australia (Governor) for a term 
commencing on 21/08/2012 and expiring on 20/08/2015.

J Cahill, Board Deputy Chair &  
non-executive director

Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 01/08/2009 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 31/07/2014. In 
accordance with the Act, Mr Cahill remains in office until either he 
resigns or is replaced.

G Cash, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 27/07/2010 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 14/10/2016.

M Davies, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 01/04/2006 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 20/08/2014. In 
accordance with the Act, Mr Davies remains in office until either he 
resigns or is replaced.

P Underwood, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 25/05/2009 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 20/08/2015.

S Wilson, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 28/12/2012 
and expiring on 27/12/2015.

The remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and all other senior executives are 
formalised in ongoing employment agreements.

The terms of these agreements relating to remuneration are set out in the following table.

Executives’ employment agreements (as at 30 June 2014)

Position Term of agreement

P Italiano, Chief Executive Officer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 06/02/2012

A Botha, Chief Operating Officer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 02/12/2013

D Fyfe, Executive Manager Process Performance Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 05/08/2013

S Hart, Chief Financial Officer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 24/10/2011

C Parrotte, Executive Manager Network Planning  
& Operations

Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 09/04/2012

J Pease, General Counsel Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 01/04/2006

S Walsh, Executive Manager Corporate Services Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 11/11/2013

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REMUNERATION CONTINUED
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This directors’ report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors made on 2 September 2014.

Signed in Perth on: 2 September 2014

A Mulgrew J Cahill 
Board Chair Board Deputy Chair 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONFIRMATION
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT WESTERN POWER

The Board of Western Power is committed to a high level of corporate governance and fostering a culture that values safety, 
ethical behaviour, integrity, diversity and respect.

Western Power’s corporate governance statement is published on its website and is available at:

http://www.westernpower.com.au/aboutus/corporateGovernance/Corporate_governance.html 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

   2013 
  2014  restated* 
 Note $’000 $’000

Income

Revenue from rendering of services  2(a) 1,641,355 1,532,852

Other income  2(e)  7,515 5,164

Total income   1,648,870  1,538,016

Expenses

Materials and services   (290,620)  (319,753)

Employee related expenses  3(a)  (247,460)  (226,627)

Depreciation and amortisation expense  3(b)  (259,767)  (232,861)

Other expenses  3(c)  (237,644)  (177,483)

Borrowing costs  3(e)  (322,592)  (311,873)

Total expenses   (1,358,083)  (1,268,597)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense   290,787  269,419

Income tax equivalent expense  4(a)  (87,841)  (78,085)

Profit for the reporting year   202,946  191,334

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be re-classified to profit and loss:

Net changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  19(a)  (34,953)  6,979

Items that will not be re-classified to profit and loss:

Net remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations  19(b)  91  312

Total other comprehensive income for the reporting year,  
net of tax equivalent   (34,862)  7,291

Total comprehensive income for the reporting year   168,084  198,625

* See note 30 for details about restatements to the 2013 comparatives for changes in accounting policies

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BALANCE SHEET 

  
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

  2014  2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents  6  25,471  22,631
Trade and other receivables  7  233,211  209,304
Inventories  8  133,692  132,002
Derivative financial instruments  9  -  522

Total current assets   392,374  364,459

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables  7  526  407
Derivative financial instruments  9  -  10,036
Property, plant and equipment  10  8,557,355  7,653,921
Intangible assets  10  131,858  138,536
Retirement benefit obligation surplus  16  -  210

Total non-current assets   8,689,739  7,803,110

Total assets   9,082,113  8,167,569

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables  11  243,857  185,820
Borrowings  14  13,148  -
Derivative financial instruments  9  11,763  10
Provisions  12  79,376  74,433
Deferred income  13 85,047  106,592

Total current liabilities   433,191  366,855

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables  11  7,108  7,686
Borrowings  14  6,820,166  6,188,044
Derivative financial instruments  9  26,269  468
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  15  344,415  271,567
Provisions  12  31,057  29,770
Deferred income  13  3,567  5,390

Total non-current liabilities   7,232,582  6,502,925

Total liabilities   7,665,773  6,869,780

Net assets   1,416,340  1,297,789

EQUITY
Contributed equity  18  896,101  821,239
Reserve  19(a)  (27,856)  7,097
Retained earnings  19(b)  548,095  469,453

Total equity   1,416,340  1,297,789

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

  Contributed   Hedging  Retained Total 
  equity   reserve  earnings  equity  
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2012  821,239 118 379,942 1,201,299

Comprehensive income 19 

Profit, net of tax equivalent as reported in 2013  - - 191,377 191,377

Changes in accounting policies* 30(a) - - (43) (43)

Restated* profit, net of tax equivalent  - - 191,334 191,334

Other comprehensive income,  
net of tax equivalent as reported in 2013  - 6,979 269 7,248

Changes in accounting policies* 30(a) - - 43 43

Restated* other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - 6,979 312 7,291

Total comprehensive income  - 6,979 191,646 198,625

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners 

Contributions of equity 18 - - - -

Dividends provided for or paid 20 - - (102,135) (102,135)

Total transactions with owners  - - (102,135) (102,135)

At 30 June 2013  821,239 7,097 469,453 1,297,789

At 1 July 2013  821,239 7,097 469,453 1,297,789

Comprehensive income 19 

Profit, net of tax equivalent  - - 202,946 202,946

Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent  - (34,953) 91 (34,862)

Total comprehensive income  - (34,953) 203,037 168,084

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners 

Contributions of equity 18 74,862 - - 74,862

Dividends provided for or paid 20 - - (124,395) (124,395)

Total transactions with owners  74,862 - (124,395) (49,533)

At 30 June 2014  896,101 (27,856) 548,095 1,416,340

* See note 30 for details about restatements to the 2013 comparatives for changes in accounting policies

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

  2014  2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax)  1,686,924 1,604,749

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)  (724,015) (725,943)

Contributions to tariff equalisation fund  (209,000) (154,000)

Other income  7,463 1,781

Net cash inflows from operating activities 21 761,372 726,587

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets  (1,014,457) (1,027,405)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  4,360 7,294

Net cash outflows from investing activities  (1,010,097) (1,020,111)

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings  9,405,000 10,315,000

Repayments of borrowings  (8,752,722) (9,640,728)

Interest received  719 985

Interest paid  (351,899) (279,895)

Proceeds from contributed equity  74,862 -

Distributions to equity holder  (124,395) (102,135)

Net cash inflows from financing activities  251,565 293,227

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,840 (297)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the reporting year  22,631 22,928

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting year 6 25,471 22,631

Non-cash investing and financing activities 22

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) is incorporated under the Electricity 
Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act) and domiciled in Australia. The registered office and principal place of business is 363 
Wellington Street, Perth, Western Australia 6000. 

Western Power is primarily involved in the building, maintenance and operation of the electricity network throughout the 
majority of southern Western Australia. (For a more detailed description of Western Power’s operations and principal 
activities refer to the ‘review of operations’ and ‘principal activities’ sections of the directors’ report included in this financial 
report).

These financial statements cover Western Power as an individual entity and were authorised for issue by the directors on 2 
September 2014. The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial report.

2 INCOME

(a) Revenue from rendering of services

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Network services revenue: 2(b)

Transmission tariff services 2(d) 363,667 387,303

Distribution tariff services 2(d) 968,278 835,207

Other services  117,959 133,152

  1,449,904 1,355,662

Developer and customer contributions 2(c) 191,451 177,190

Total revenue from rendering of services  1,641,355 1,532,852

(b) Network services revenue

Western Power receives network services revenue from the transmission and distribution of electricity, and provision of 
related services including system operations. Network services revenue is recognised when the service is provided. As at 
each reporting date, network services revenue and trade receivables include amounts attributable to ‘unbilled network tariff 
revenue’. Unbilled network tariff revenue is an estimate of electricity transported to customers that has not been billed at the 
reporting date (refer to note 2(d)).

Western Power is subject to an access arrangement, which determines the revenues receivable for its network services 
through a revenue cap. No liabilities are recognised when revenues received or receivable exceed the maximum amount 
permitted by the revenue cap and adjustments will be made to future prices to reflect this over-recovery. Similarly, no assets 
are recognised when the access arrangement permits adjustments to be made to future prices in respect of an under-
recovery of the revenue cap.

(c) Developer and customer contributions

Western Power receives developer and customer contributions toward the extension or augmentation of electricity 
infrastructure to facilitate network connection. Contributions can be in the form of either cash contributions or gifted 
network assets. Cash contributions received are initially deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue when the 
developers or customers are connected to the network in accordance with the terms of the contributions. Gifted network 
assets are recognised as revenue at the point the assets are energised and are measured at their fair value. The network 
assets resulting from contributions received or gifted are recognised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated 
over their expected useful life.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(d) Significant estimate: unbilled network tariff revenue

Transmission and distribution network tariff revenue includes $174.170 million for unbilled services (30 June 2013: $161.396 
million). This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted in prior years and reflects the billing profile of 
Western Power customers. The unbilled network tariff revenue is calculated using projected revenue assumptions based on 
historical and budget data for unread, and as such unbilled meters as at the end of the reporting year.

(e) Other income 

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Insurance recoveries 3(d) 4,272 2,076

Rent  1,983 1,708

Interest   719 985

Other   541 395

  7,515 5,164

3 EXPENSES

Profit before income tax equivalent includes the following specific expenses:

(a) Employee related expenses

Western Power has applied the revised accounting standard for employee benefits from 1 July 2013. This has affected 
some of the amounts recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. The information shown in this note has been 
restated based on the new standard. The changes in accounting policy are further explained in note 30. 

   2013 
  2014 restated 
 Note $’000 $’000

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits  (212,579) (193,474)

Superannuation:

Defined contribution plans  (34,386) (33,011)

Net defined benefit expense 16(e) (495) (142)

  (34,881) (33,153)

Total employee related expenses  (247,460) (226,627)
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(b) Depreciation and amortisation expense 

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Depreciation expense: 10(d)  

Buildings  (4,576) (3,605)

Plant and equipment  (237,063) (212,827)

Capitalised depreciation  8,183 3,865

  (233,456) (212,567)

Amortisation expense: 10(d) 

Computer software  (20,935) (18,658)

Intellectual property  (5,376) (1,636)

  (26,311) (20,294)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense  (259,767) (232,861)

(c) Other expenses 

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Tariff equalisation fund  (209,000) (154,000)

Insurance  (14,578) (13,489)

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3(d) (7,439) (3,151)

Operating lease costs  (5,066) (5,672)

Impairment of trade receivables 24(c) (1,083) (652)

Remuneration of auditors  (430) (376)

Other  (48) (143)

  (237,644) (177,483)

(d) Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

In the year ended 30 June 2013, the ‘net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment’ included a loss of $3.324 
million for a transformer damaged at the Muja substation. An insurance recovery of $2.800 million (30 June 2013: $1.106 
million) has been recognised in ‘other income’ in relation to this asset. 

(e) Borrowing costs

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Domestic currency loans not at fair value through profit or loss  (332,630) (317,595)

Fair value loss on cash flow hedges  (143) -

Unwinding of discount on contributory extension scheme  (988) (1,086)

Currency and interest rate swaps   (524) (97)

Other  (31) (114)

Capitalised borrowing costs 10(c) 11,724 7,019

  (322,592) (311,873)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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4 INCOME TAX EQUIVALENT EXPENSE 

Western Power has applied the revised accounting standard for employee benefits from 1 July 2013. This has affected 
some of the amounts recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. The information shown in this note has been 
restated based on the new standard. The changes in accounting policy are further explained in note 30. 

(a) Income tax equivalent expense recognised in statement of comprehensive income 

 2014 2013 restated

 Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Income tax equivalent expense - (87,252) (87,252) - (79,910) (79,910)

Adjustment for income tax equivalent of prior years - (589) (589) - 1,825 1,825

 - (87,841) (87,841) - (78,085) (78,085)

Income tax equivalent expense is attributable to:

Profit for the reporting year   (87,841)   (78,085)

Deferred income tax equivalent (revenue)/expense included in income tax  
equivalent expense comprises:

Increase in deferred tax equivalent assets (note 15)   41,533   42,276

Increase in deferred tax equivalent liabilities (note 15)   (129,374)   (120,361)

Total income tax equivalent expense   (87,841)   (78,085)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense to prima facie tax equivalent payable

   2013 
  2014 restated 
  $’000 $’000

Profit before income tax equivalent expense  290,787 269,419

Income tax equivalent at the Australian tax rate of 30% (30 June 2013: 30%)  (87,236) (80,826)

Income tax equivalent effect of amounts not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income: 

Non deductable expenses  (67) (113)

Research and development incentives  51 1,029

Current income tax equivalent expense  (87,252) (79,910)

Adjustment for deferred tax equivalent of prior years  (589) 1,825

Total income tax equivalent expense  (87,841) (78,085)

(c) Tax equivalent expense relating to items of other comprehensive income

   2013 
  2014 restated 
  $’000 $’000

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  15,023 (2,991)

Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss  (43) -

Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations  13 (182)

  14,993 (3,173)
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5 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Western Power uses a range of financial instruments to support the operations of the business. The carrying amounts 
recognised as at the reporting date are presented below:

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 25,471 - 25,471 22,631 - 22,631

Trade and other receivables  
(excluding prepayments) 7 198,739 526 199,265 190,985 407 191,392

Derivative financial instruments 9 - - - 522 10,036 10,558

Total financial assets  224,210 526 224,736 214,138 10,443 224,581

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables: 11 243,857 7,108 250,965 185,820 7,686 193,506

Trade payables and accruals  193,291 - 193,291 130,458 - 130,458

Other payables  46,939 - 46,939 52,092 - 52,092

Contributory extension scheme  3,627 7,108 10,735 3,270 7,686 10,956

Borrowings: 14 13,148 6,820,166 6,833,314 - 6,188,044 6,188,044

Domestic working capital facility  13,000 - 13,000 - - -

Domestic currency loans   - 6,812,047 6,812,047 - 6,133,644 6,133,644

Accrued interest  148 8,119 8,267 - 54,400 54,400

Derivative financial instruments 9 11,763 26,269 38,032 10 468 478

Total financial liabilities  268,768 6,853,543 7,122,311 185,830 6,196,198 6,382,028

(a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Other than disclosed below, the fair values of Western Power’s financial assets and financial liabilities are assumed to 
approximate the above carrying amounts.  

 2014 2013

  Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
  amount value amount value 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Contributory extension scheme (current financial liabilities) 11  3,627 3,627 3,270 3,270

Contributory extension scheme (non-current financial liabilities) 11  7,108 10,471 7,686 11,924

Domestic currency loans (non-current financial liabilities) 14  6,812,047 7,093,681 6,133,644 6,363,412

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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Trade and other receivables/payables

The fair value of receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year is deemed to be the notional amount due to 
their short-term nature. The fair value of all other receivables/payables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, 
discounted using the current market rates of interest available for similar receivables/payables, unless the effect of 
discounting would be immaterial.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the 
reporting period. For derivatives not traded in active markets the valuation techniques in note 17(b) are used. These 
techniques result in fair values classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in note 17(a)) because either the 
inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently calculated by the provider of the instrument.

Contributory extension scheme

The fair value of the contributory extension scheme is calculated by discounting the expected future payments using the 
Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) zero coupon rates whose terms most closely match the terms of the 
related payables. The average coupon rate used for discounting at 30 June 2014 is 3.5 per cent (30 June 2013: 3.9 per 
cent). The fair value is classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in note 17(a)) because the inputs are based 
on observable market data. 

Domestic currency loans 

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by discounting the expected future principal and interest cash flows using the 
interest rates presented in the table below. This is except for borrowings linked to the consumer price index (CPI), which are 
independently fair valued by the WATC, the provider of these instruments. 

  2014 2013

WATC yield curve  2.8% - 4.5% 2.8% - 4.6%

Bank bill swap (BBSW) reference rate  2.7% 2.8% - 2.9%

Australian dollar (AUD) interest rate swap curve  2.7% - 4.1% 2.7% - 4.0%

The fair value of borrowings is classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in note 17(a)) because either the 
inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently calculated by the provider of the borrowings.

(b) Recognised fair value measurements

Refer to note 17 for details of the assets and liabilities recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements as 
at the reporting date.

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Current

Cash at bank   25,471 22,631

  25,471 22,631

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of Western Power and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. As at 30 June 2014, Western 
Power did not have any short-term deposits (30 June 2013: nil).
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7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade receivables 7(b) 198,140 - 198,140 188,153 - 188,153

Provision for impairment of  
trade receivables  7(c) (1,180) - (1,180) (1,296) - (1,296)

  196,960 - 196,960 186,857 - 186,857

Prepayments  34,472 - 34,472 18,319 - 18,319

Other receivables  1,779 526 2,305 4,128 407 4,535

  233,211 526 233,737 209,304 407 209,711

(a) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables represent amounts due from customers for services provided or goods sold in the ordinary 
course of business. They are usually settled on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed otherwise.  

(b) Significant estimate: unbilled trade receivables

Trade receivables include unbilled network tariff revenue of $174.170 million (30 June 2013: $161.396 million). Refer to note 
2(d) for further details about the estimation of this amount.

(c) Impaired trade receivables

Refer to the ‘credit risk’ section within note 24 for details of the trade receivables impaired and past due as at the reporting 
date.

8 INVENTORIES

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Current

Raw materials and stores  133,692 132,002

  133,692 132,002

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Inventories recognised as expense during the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted to $62.508 million (30 June 2013: 
$60.206 million).

The write-down of inventory to net realisable value recognised as expense during the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted 
to $0.733 million (30 June 2013: $3.800 million). The expense has been recognised in ‘materials and services’ in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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9 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Assets 

Interest rate swaps  - - - - 998 998

Forward exchange contracts  - - - 90 63 153

Forward domestic borrowing commitments - - - 432 8,975 9,407

  - - - 522 10,036 10,558

Liabilities 

Interest rate swaps  - 861 861 - - -

Forward exchange contracts  5 - 5 - - -

Forward domestic borrowing commitments 11,758 25,408 37,166 10 468 478

  11,763 26,269 38,032 10 468 478

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposures to movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and 
commodity prices. Western Power uses derivative financial instruments in accordance with Board approved policy. 
Speculative trading where a derivative is entered into without an underlying business exposure is strictly prohibited.  

As at the reporting date, Western Power had the following derivative financial instruments:

Instrument Exposure hedged

Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedge 
accounting per note 29(j))

Western Power has entered into interest rate swaps in order to hedge against 
floating interest rate exposures arising from borrowing obligations

Forward exchange contracts (cash 
flow hedge accounting per note 29(j))

Western Power has entered into forward exchange contracts in order to hedge 
against foreign exchange risk arising from the future purchase of capital 
equipment in foreign currencies

Forward domestic borrowing 
commitments (cash flow hedge 
accounting per note 29(j))

Western Power has entered into forward domestic borrowing commitments in 
order to hedge against interest rate exposures arising from future borrowing 
obligations
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

    Works Total   Total 
 Freehold  Plant and under plant and Computer Intellectual intangible 
 land Buildings equipment construction equipment software property assets 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost 132,915 163,577 8,973,456 665,135 9,935,083 263,252 11,634 274,886

Accumulated  
depreciation and  
amortisation - (35,811) (1,341,917) - (1,377,728) (133,783) (9,245) (143,028)

Carrying amount  
at 30 June 2014 132,915 127,766 7,631,539 665,135 8,557,355 129,469 2,389 131,858

Cost 132,128 153,948 7,945,331 565,255 8,796,662 243,619 11,634 255,253

Accumulated  
depreciation and  
amortisation - (31,273) (1,111,468) - (1,142,741) (112,848) (3,869) (116,717)

Carrying amount  

at 30 June 2013 132,128 122,675 6,833,863 565,255 7,653,921 130,771 7,765 138,536

(a) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets during the reporting year 
are presented below:

    Works Total   Total 
 Freehold  Plant and under plant and Computer Intellectual intangible 
 land Buildings equipment construction equipment software property assets 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Carrying amount  
at 30 June 2012 123,916 61,285 6,152,872 555,605 6,893,678 88,192 9,413 97,605

Cost

Additions (notes 10(b)&10(c)) - - - 1,068,153 1,068,153 - - -

Transfers to inventory - - - (19,780) (19,780) - - -

Transfers in/(out) 8,948 74,131 894,419 (1,038,723) (61,225) 61,237 (12) 61,225

Issues of strategic spares - - (28) - (28) - - -

Disposals (736) (3,899) (26,850) - (31,485) (1,118) - (1,118)

Accumulated  
depreciation and  
amortisation 

Transfers (in)/out - (8,799) 8,799 - - - - -

Disposals - 3,562 17,478 - 21,040 1,118 - 1,118

Depreciation and  
amortisation (note 10(d)) - (3,605) (212,827) - (216,432) (18,658) (1,636) (20,294)

Carrying amount  
at 30 June 2013 132,128 122,675 6,833,863 565,255 7,653,921 130,771 7,765 138,536

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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    Works Total   Total 
 Freehold  Plant and under plant and Computer Intellectual intangible 
 land Buildings equipment construction equipment software property assets 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Carrying amount  
at 30 June 2013 132,128 122,675 6,833,863 565,255 7,653,921 130,771 7,765 138,536

Cost

Additions (notes 10(b)&10(c)) - - 114 1,194,058 1,194,172 - - -

Transfers to inventory - - - (17,667) (17,667) - - -

Transfers in/(out) 1,839 9,801 1,045,238 (1,076,511) (19,633) 19,633 - 19,633

Disposals (1,052) (172) (17,227) - (18,451) - - -

Accumulated  
depreciation and  
amortisation

Transfers (in)/out - 19 (19) - - - - -

Disposals - 19 6,633 - 6,652 - - -

Depreciation and  
amortisation (note 10(d)) - (4,576) (237,063) - (241,639) (20,935) (5,376) (26,311)

Carrying amount  
at 30 June 2014 132,915 127,766 7,631,539 665,135 8,557,355 129,469 2,389 131,858

(b) Contributed assets

Western Power receives non-cash capital contributions in the form of gifted network assets. The fair value of gifted network 
assets included in additions to works under construction in the reporting year was $59.138 million (30 June 2013: $57.585 
million).

(c) Capitalised borrowing costs

Additions include borrowing costs of $11.724 million (30 June 2013: $7.019 million) attributable to assets in the course of 
construction, and capitalised in the reporting year at a weighted average interest rate of 5.2 per cent (30 June 2013: 5.5 per 
cent). 

(d) Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation represent charges to the ‘depreciation and amortisation expense’ in the statement of 
comprehensive income of $259.767 million (30 June 2013: $232.861 million), together with capitalised depreciation for fleet 
assets used in the course of construction of $8.183 million (30 June 2013: $3.865 million).

Refer to notes 29(k) an 29(l) for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and useful economic lives applied. 
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11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade payables and accruals  193,291 - 193,291 130,458 - 130,458

Other payables 11(a) 46,939 - 46,939 52,092 - 52,092

Contributory extension scheme 11(c) 3,627 7,108 10,735 3,270 7,686 10,956

  243,857 7,108 250,965 185,820 7,686 193,506

(a) Re-classification of comparatives

Refer to note 30(b) for details about the ‘annual leave’ re-classification to the 2013 comparatives on adoption of the revised 
AASB 119 Employee benefits. The amounts disclosed in this note are after this re-classification. 

(b) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Western Power prior to the end of the 
reporting year which are unpaid. They are usually settled within 30 days of recognition.  

(c) Contributory extension scheme

Contributory extension scheme payables represent contributions received from customers to extend specific electricity 
supplies. These non-interest bearing deposits are refunded at the end of the contribution period unless other customers 
connect to the extensions. By 2023, when the scheme finishes, all scheme members will have had their contributions 
refunded. 

12 PROVISIONS

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Employee benefits:

Annual leave 12(a), 12(d) 36,620 - 36,620 37,978 - 37,978

Long service leave 12(d) 32,775 20,645 53,420 33,867 19,237 53,104

Other  291 - 291 286 - 286

  69,686 20,645 90,331 72,131 19,237 91,368

Rehabilitation costs  9,212 7,381 16,593 328 8,046 8,374

Environmental costs 12(b) 478 3,031 3,509 1,974 2,487 4,461

  79,376 31,057 110,433 74,433 29,770 104,203

(a) Re-classification of comparatives

Refer to note 30(b) for details about the ‘annual leave’ re-classification to the 2013 comparatives on adoption of the revised 
AASB 119 Employee benefits. The amounts disclosed in this note are after this re-classification. 

(b) Environmental costs

Environmental provisions relate to estimated costs on essential safety expenditure. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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(c) Movements in provisions

Movements in each class of provision during the reporting year, other than employee benefits, are presented below: 

  Rehabilitation Environmental 
  costs costs 
  $’000 $’000

At 30 June 2013  8,374 4,461
Provided for in the reporting year  8,535 -
Charged in the reporting year  (316) (952)

At 30 June 2014  16,593 3,509

(d)  Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

The annual and long service leave benefits reported as current because Western Power does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement, but that based on past experience are not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months, 
are presented below: 

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Annual leave (current) 
Annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months  21,738 37,978
Annual leave expected to be settled after 12 months  14,882 -

  36,620 37,978

Long service leave (current)
Long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months  4,930 5,145
Long service leave expected to be settled after 12 months  27,845 28,722

  32,775 33,867

13 DEFERRED INCOME

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred income  85,047 3,567 88,614 106,592 5,390 111,982

Deferred income relates to contributions received in advance from developers and customers.

Movements in deferred income

Movements in deferred income during the reporting year are presented below:

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

At 1 July  111,982 122,175
Contributions in the reporting year  117,151 121,734
Earned in the reporting year  (140,519) (131,927)

At 30 June  88,614 111,982
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14 BORROWINGS

 2014 2013

   Non-   Non-  
  Current current Total Current current Total 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Domestic working capital facility  13,000 - 13,000 - - - 

Domestic currency loans  14(a) - 6,812,047 6,812,047 - 6,133,644 6,133,644

Accrued interest  148 8,119 8,267 - 54,400 54,400

  13,148 6,820,166 6,833,314 - 6,188,044 6,188,044

Western Power’s domestic borrowings are all provided by the WATC. 

(a) Classification of borrowings 

Non-current domestic currency loans of $6,812.047 million (30 June 2013: $6,133.644 million) includes an amount of 
$990.563 million (30 June 2013: $1,483.747 million) that will become due and payable during the 2015 reporting year. It is 
Western Power’s expectation and discretion that this amount will be refinanced under the master lending agreement rather 
than repaid, and therefore has been classified as non-current. This is supported by: 

(i) A master lending agreement with the WATC, an entity owned by the Western Australian State Government, that allows 
Western Power to refinance all or any part of maturing debt at regular intervals 

(ii) The approval of Western Power’s forecast borrowing requirements for the next four years, including no repayment of 
amounts classified as non-current above, within the Western Australian State Budget handed down on 8 May 2014

(b) Forward domestic borrowing commitments

Western Power enters into forward domestic borrowing commitments with the WATC where it agrees to borrow specified 
amounts in the future at a pre-determined interest rate. These borrowings are entered into with the objective of managing 
interest rate risks. As at 30 June 2014, Western Power had 52 forward domestic borrowing commitments (30 June 2013: 
53) with an aggregate principal value of $1,160.0 million (30 June 2013: $1,060.0 million).
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15 DEFERRED TAX EQUIVALENT LIABILITIES

The balance of deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities comprises temporary differences attributable to:

 2014 2013 restated

  Deferred Deferred Net (liability Deferred Deferred Net (liability 
  tax asset tax liability less asset) tax asset tax liability less asset) 
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current

Property, plant and equipment (PPE),  
and intangible assets  - 494,398 494,398 - 364,727 364,727

Contributory extension scheme  - 1,115 1,115 - 1,412 1,412

Derivative financial instruments  11,956 - (11,956) - 3,024 3,024

Provisions for employee benefits  27,100 - (27,100) 27,364 - (27,364)

Tax equivalent losses  96,172 - (96,172) 55,873 - (55,873)

Non refundable research and  
development (R&D) tax offsets  5,209 - (5,209) 6,936 - (6,936)

Other temporary differences  10,661 - (10,661) 7,423 - (7,423)

Total deferred tax equivalent  151,098 495,513 344,415 97,596 369,163 271,567

Set-off deferred tax equivalent assets  
pursuant to set-off provisions  (151,098) (151,098) - (97,596) (97,596) -

Net deferred tax equivalent  - 344,415 344,415 - 271,567 271,567

Expected to be recovered/(settled)  
within 12 months  31,814 - (31,814) 24,487 - (24,487)

Expected to be recovered after  
more than 12 months  119,284 495,513 376,229 73,109 369,163 296,054

  151,098 495,513 344,415 97,596 369,163 271,567

(a) Changes in accounting policies

Western Power has applied the revised accounting standard for employee benefits from 1 July 2013. This has affected 
some of the amounts recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. The information shown in this note has been 
restated based on the new standard. The changes in accounting policy are further explained in note 30. 
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(b) Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets

Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets during the reporting year are presented below:

     Non   
  Derivative Provisions Tax refundable Other Deferred tax 
  financial for employee equivalent R&D tax temporary equivalent 
  instruments benefits losses offsets differences asset 
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2012  - 26,418 24,329 - 4,755 55,502

Charged to profit or loss  - 656 31,934 4,116 3,027 39,733

Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - (182) (182)

Adjustment to income tax equivalent  
provided in prior years  - 290 (390) 2,820 (177) 2,543

At 30 June 2013  - 27,364 55,873 6,936 7,423 97,596

Charged to profit or loss  - (264) 41,379 661 3,225 45,001

Charged to other comprehensive income 11,956 - - - 13 11,969

Adjustment to income tax equivalent  
provided in prior years  - - (1,080) (2,388) - (3,468)

At 30 June 2014  11,956 27,100 96,172 5,209 10,661 151,098

(c) Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities 

Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities during the reporting year are presented below:

    PPE, and Contributory Derivative Deferred tax 
    intangible extension financial equivalent 
    assets scheme instruments liability 
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2012    244,040 1,738 33 245,811

Charged to profit or loss    119,969 (326) - 119,643

Charged to other comprehensive income   - - 2,991 2,991

Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years  718 - - 718

At 30 June 2013    364,727 1,412 3,024 369,163

Charged to profit or loss    132,550 (297) - 132,253

Charged to other comprehensive income   - - (3,024) (3,024)

Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years  (2,879) - - (2,879)

At 30 June 2014    494,398 1,115 - 495,513
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16 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations 16(c) - 334

Fair value of prepaid unfunded defined benefit obligations 16(d) - (378)

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 16(c) - 1,559

Fair value of plan assets 16(d) - (1,725)

Recognised asset for defined benefit obligations  - (210)

(a) Changes in accounting policies 

Western Power has applied the revised accounting standard for employee benefits from 1 July 2013. This has affected 
some of the amounts recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. The information shown in this note has been 
restated based on the new standard. The changes in accounting policy are further explained in note 30.  

(b) Defined benefit plans

Unfunded 

(i) Nature of benefits provided

 Western Power contributes to the defined benefit Pension Scheme (the Scheme) in which members receive pension 
benefits payable on retirement, death or invalidity, or a lump sum benefit on resignation. The Scheme is closed to new 
members. There are no assets in the Scheme.

(ii) Description of regulatory framework

 The Scheme operates under the State Superannuation Act 2000 (WA) and the State Superannuation Regulations  
2001 (WA). 

 Although the Scheme is not formally subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, the Western 
Australian State Government has undertaken (in the Heads of Government Agreement) to operate the Scheme in 
accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.

 As an exempt public sector superannuation scheme (as defined in the SIS legislation), the Scheme is not subject to any 
minimum funding requirements.

 As a constitutionally protected scheme, the Scheme is not required to pay tax.

(iii) Description of other entities’ responsibilities for governance of the Scheme

 The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) is the Scheme’s Trustee and is responsible for the 
governance of the Scheme. As Trustee, GESB has a legal obligation to act solely in the best interests of Scheme 
beneficiaries. GESB has the following roles: 

 • Administration of the Scheme and payment to the beneficiaries when required in accordance with the Scheme rules

 • Management and investment of the Scheme assets (where relevant)

 • Compliance with the Heads of Government Agreement
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Funded

With effect from 1 October 2013, the defined benefit plan funded by Western Power and administered by AustralianSuper 
was wound up (30 June 2013: six members). This was in response to the federal Government’s new superannuation 
reforms whereby all superannuation guarantee contributions must be paid into an approved and licensed MySuper product.

There were no plan assets at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: $1.725 million).

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Equity securities  - 966
Property  - 207
Bonds  - 224
Other securities  - 242
Cash  - 86

  - 1,725

(c) Movements in liability for defined benefit obligations 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations 
during the reporting year are presented below: 

 2014 2013

  Unfunded Funded Total Unfunded Funded Total 
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July  334 1,559 1,893 525 1,799 2,324
Employer contributions  (263) - (263) - - -
Past service cost and loss on settlement - 188 188 - - -
Current service cost  310 - 310 123 - 123
Defined benefit interest expense  11 15 26 15 53 68
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:  
Changes in demographic assumptions  - - - (8) - (8)
Changes in financial assumptions   (20) (12) (32) (54) (133) (187)
Experience adjustments  (38) (13) (51) 258 (6) 252
Benefits paid  (334) (1,737) (2,071) (525) (154) (679)

Net liability at 30 June  - - - 334 1,559 1,893

(d) Movements in plan assets 

Movements in the plan assets during the reporting year are presented below: 

 2014 2013

  Unfunded Funded Total Unfunded Funded Total 
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July  378 1,725 2,103 - 1,657 1,657
Employer contributions  (56) - (56) 525 - 525
Benefits paid  (334) (1,737) (2,071) (525) (154) (679)
Expected interest income  12 17 29 - 49 49
Remeasurement gains/(losses)  - (5) (5) 378 173 551

Fair value of plan assets at 30 June  - - - 378 1,725 2,103
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(e) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

The amounts recognised in profit or loss are presented below:

   2013 
  2014 restated 
  $’000 $’000

Past service cost and loss on settlement  188  -

Current service cost  310 123

Net defined benefit interest expense/(income)   (3) 19

Total included in ‘employee related expenses’  495 142

Past service cost and loss on settlement

With effect from 1 October 2013, the defined benefit plan funded by Western Power was wound up. On wind up the defined 
benefits were converted to the defined contribution section of the plan, and the remaining plan assets distributed to the 
members. The net impact was a past service cost and settlement loss of $0.188 million. 

(f) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 

   2013 
  2014 restated 
  $’000 $’000

Remeasurement gains recognised in the reporting year  (78) (494)

  (78) (494)

Cumulative remeasurement losses recognised   4,401 4,479

  4,401 4,479

(g) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions used are presented below:

 2014 2013

 Unfunded Funded Unfunded Funded

Discount rate 3.7% 3.9% 3.4% 4.0%

Expected return on plan assets n/a n/a n/a 7.0%

Expected future salary increases 5.0% 4.5% 5.0% 4.5%

Expected future pension increases 2.5% n/a 2.5% 2.5%
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Unfunded

The discount rate is based on the Government Bond maturing in April 2024. The decrement rates used (for example 
mortality and retirement rates) are based on those used at the last actuarial valuation for the Scheme.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the principal actuarial assumptions is:

 Discount rate Pension increase 
 +/- 0.5% pa +/- 0.5% pa

 Base case Scenario A Scenario B Scenario C Scenario D

Discount rate 3.7% 4.2% 3.2% 3.7% 3.7%

Expected future pension increases 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 3.0% 2.0%

Retirement benefit obligation ($’000) 263 240 294 285 247

The defined benefit obligation has been recalculated by changing the assumptions as outlined above, whilst retaining all 
other obligations. Comparative information has not been provided for the sensitivity analysis as permitted by the transitional 
provisions of the revised AASB 119 Employee benefits.

(h) Risk exposure and significant events

Unfunded 

Through the unfunded defined benefit plan, Western Power is exposed to a number of risks, the more significant of which 
are detailed below: 

Legislative risk The risk is that legislative changes could be made which increase the cost of providing the 
defined benefits

Pensioner mortality risk The risk is that pensioner mortality will be lower than expected, resulting in pensions being 
paid for a longer period

Inflation risk The risk is that inflation is higher than anticipated, increasing pension payments, and the 
associated employer contributions

There were no plan amendments, curtailments or settlements during the year.

(i) Defined benefit liability and employee contributions

Unfunded

Western Power contributes to the Scheme as required to meet the benefits paid. Expected contributions to post-
employment benefit plans for the reporting year ended 30 June 2015 are nil.

The weighted average duration of Western Power’s defined benefit obligation is 21.0 years.
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17 RECOGNISED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(a) Fair value hierarchy 

The assets and liabilities of Western Power measured and recognised at fair value as at the reporting date are presented in 
the below table, by the following fair value hierarchy levels: 

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,  
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

 2014 2013

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets 

Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 10,558 - 10,558

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments - 38,032 - 38,032 - 478 - 478

It is Western Power’s policy to recognise transfers into and out of the fair value hierarchy levels at the end of each reporting 
year. As at 30 June 2014, there were no transfers between levels for recurring fair value measurements (30 June 2013: no 
transfers). 

(b) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values  

Recurring fair value measurements 

The fair value of derivatives in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. Where 
derivatives are entered into that are not traded in active markets the fair value is determined using valuation techniques. 
These techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on specific 
estimates. In some instances, independent valuations from the provider of the instrument are used.

If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are based on observable market data, or the valuation is 
independently calculated by the provider of the instrument, the instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of the 
significant inputs is not based on observable market data the instrument is included in level 3. For the year ended 30 June 
2014, level 3 valuation techniques were not used (30 June 2013: not used).

Specific valuation techniques used to value derivative financial instruments (where relevant) include:

(i)  The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on a 
combination of observable BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves

(ii)  The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using a combination of observable forward exchange rates, 
BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves at the reporting date

(iii) The fair value of forward domestic borrowing commitments is independently calculated by the WATC, the provider of 
these instruments 

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2. For the potential impact to Western Power’s annual profit and 
other comprehensive income due to movements in the key observable inputs being interest and foreign exchange rates, 
refer to the sensitivity analysis in note 24(b).
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18 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

The owner’s (being the Western Australian State Government) initial contribution comprised the assets of Western Power 
Corporation, after deducting liabilities, transferred to Western Power on 1 April 2006. The owner has made subsequent 
contributions for the edge of grid and regional power investment programs, and to offset dividends paid on developer and 
customer contributions.

Movements in contributed equity during the reporting year are presented below: 

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

At 1 July  821,239 821,239

Contributions in the reporting year 18(a) 74,862 -

At 30 June  896,101 821,239

(a) Contributed equity 

In the reporting period ended 30 June 2014, the State Government contributed $74.862 million (30 June 2013: nil) to offset 
Western Power’s 2014 dividend payment attributable to developer and customer contributions.

19 RESERVE AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

Western Power has applied the revised accounting standard for employee benefits from 1 July 2013. This has affected 
some of the amounts recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. The information shown in this note has been 
restated based on the new standard. The changes in accounting policy are further explained in note 30.  

(a) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the cumulative net changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging 
instruments related to hedging transactions. Amounts are re-classified to profit or loss when the associated hedge 
transaction affects profit or loss.

Movements in the hedging reserve during the reporting year are presented below:

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

At 1 July  7,097 118

Other comprehensive income for the reporting year:

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  (50,076) 9,970

Taxation equivalent on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  15,023 (2,991)

Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss  143 -

Taxation equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss  (43) -

  (34,953) 6,979

At 30 June  (27,856) 7,097
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(b) Retained earnings

Movements in retained earnings during the reporting year are presented below: 

   2013 
  2014 restated 
 Note $’000 $’000

At 1 July  469,453 379,942

Profit for the reporting year  202,946 191,334

Dividends provided for or paid 20 (124,395) (102,135)

Other comprehensive income for the reporting year:

Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations  78 494

Taxation equivalent on remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations  13 (182)

  91 312

At 30 June  548,095 469,453

20 DIVIDENDS

During the reporting year the following dividends were declared and paid to the Western Australian State Government:

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Final dividend payment for the prior reporting year  (124,395) (102,135)

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period 

Since the end of the reporting period the directors have recommended, subject to the approval of the Minister for Energy, 
the payment of a final dividend of $131.915 million in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The dividend will be 
provided for in the accounts once accepted by the Minister for Energy with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western 
Australia. This dividend is to be offset by an equity contribution from the State Government of $76.925 million as approved 
in the Western Australian State Budget handed down on 8 May 2014. The contribution is attributable to Western Power’s 
developer and customer contributions. 
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21 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT TO NET CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Western Power has applied the revised accounting standard for employee benefits from 1 July 2013. This has affected 
some of the amounts recognised and disclosed in the financial statements. The information shown in this note has been 
restated based on the new standard. The changes in accounting policy are further explained in note 30.

   2013 
  2014 restated 
 Note $’000 $’000

Profit for the reporting year  202,946 191,334

Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3(b) 259,767 232,861
Written down value on disposal of property, plant and equipment,  
and intangible assets 10(a) 11,799 10,445
Non-cash capital contributions 10(b) (59,138) (57,585)
Non-cash employee related expenses 16(f) 78 494

Items classified as investing and financing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (4,360) (7,294)
Interest income 2(e)  (719) (985)
Borrowing costs 3(e) 322,592 311,873

Movements in operating assets and liabilities
Movement in trade and other receivables  (15,270) (7,648)
Movement in inventories  (1,690) (16,602)
Movement in trade and other payables  (25,546) (11,642)
Movement in provisions  6,440 13,444
Movement in deferred income  (23,368) (10,193)
Movement in deferred taxation equivalent liabilities  87,841 78,085

Net cash inflows from operating activities  761,372 726,587

22 NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000

Gifted network assets  10(b) 59,138 57,585

23 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian accounting standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on Western Power and that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which 
the estimate is revised and any future years affected.

The areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements, or a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity is involved are referenced in the following notes: 

• Estimation of unbilled network tariff revenue: notes 2(d) and 7(b)

• Estimation of fair values of derivative financial instruments: notes 5(a) and 17(b)

• Estimation of retirement benefit obligations: note 16(g)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Overview

The Western Power Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. 
To assist in fulfilling this role, the Board has established a Finance & Risk Committee (F&RC) and a Treasury Management 
Committee (TMC). The F&RC oversees and manages Western Power’s treasury activities through the TMC. The treasury 
policy establishes the framework for managing the financial risks arising from Western Power’s operations. Adherence to 
this policy ensures that at all times, Western Power maintains an appropriate level of control over financial and associated 
risks to ensure compliance with the core values, as defined in the corporate strategic plan.

The principal financial risks arising from Western Power’s operations including the objectives, policies and processes for 
measuring and managing these exposures are summarised below and further described in this note:

Risk Note Exposure Measurement Management

Market risk

Interest rate risk 24(b)(i) Borrowings at floating rates Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps 
Forward borrowing commitments

Currency risk 24(b)(ii) Future commercial transactions Cash flow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis

Forward exchange contracts

Commodity risk 24(b)(iii) Future commercial transactions Sensitivity analysis Forward commodity contracts

Credit risk 24(c) Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
(excluding prepayments)  
Derivative financial instruments

Credit ratings 
Aging analysis

Credit limits 
Unconditional bank guarantees 
or cash deposits 
Legal collection of debts

Liquidity risk 24(d) Trade and other payables 
Borrowings 
Derivative financial instruments

Cash flow forecasting Available cash and borrowing 
facilities

(b) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Western Power has exposures to movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates 
and commodity markets.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk in Western Power arises from borrowing obligations.

Western Power has an interest rate risk management strategy which aims to manage exposures to interest rate 
movements. Debt portfolio structure guidelines are set to manage the interest rate risks arising from Western Power’s 
regulatory environment. Debt maturity guidelines are set to ensure that Western Power is not exposed to excess risk 
from interest rate volatility. Interest rate forecasts are continuously monitored and, where appropriate, exposures to 
interest rates are managed through the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and 
forward domestic borrowing commitments.
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(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk in Western Power arises from future commercial 
transactions denominated in foreign currency, principally for the purchase of capital equipment from foreign suppliers. 

Western Power’s foreign exchange risk management strategy aims to manage significant exposures through the use of 
Board approved hedging instruments, such as forward exchange contracts that provide certainty on costs. 

Western Power’s managed foreign currency risk at the reporting date is presented below: 

  2014 2013 
  US Dollars US Dollars 
  $’000 $’000

Forward exchange contracts maturing:
within one year  164 968
later than one year but within five years  - 804

The weighted average foreign exchange rate is 0.9139 (30 June 2013: 0.9947).

(iii) Commodity risk

Commodity risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in commodity prices. Commodity risk in Western Power arises from variability in commodity prices 
contained in commercial transactions principally for the purchase of equipment such as transformers, conductor cable 
and prefabricated steel towers from manufacturers. 

Western Power’s commodity price risk management strategy aims to manage significant exposures through the use of 
Board approved hedging instruments such as forward commodity contracts. Western Power has not entered into any 
financial instruments to manage commodity risk in the current reporting year (30 June 2013: nil). 

Sensitivity analysis

The following table summarises the potential impact to the annual profit and other comprehensive income of Western 
Power due to movements in interest rate risk and foreign currency rate risk. The assumptions used are based on 
management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible movement given current market conditions.

 Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk 

   Impact on other  Impact on other 
  Impact on  comprehensive Impact on comprehensive 
 Carrying profit income profit income 
 amount +/- 1% +/- 1% +/- 10% +/- 10%

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 30 June 2014 

Cash and cash equivalents 25,471 255 (255) - - - - - -

Trade and other receivables 199,265 - - - - - - - -

Total financial assets 224,736 255 (255) - - - - - -

Trade and other payables 250,965 - - - - - - - -

Borrowings2 6,833,314 (8,680) 8,680 - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest rate swaps 861 1,000 (1,000) 1,695 (3,821) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contracts 5 - - - - - - (20) 15

Derivatives-fwd borrowings1 37,166 - - 14,635 (88,967) - - - -

Total financial liabilities 7,122,311 (7,680) 7,680 16,330 (92,788) - - (20) 15
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 Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk

   Impact on other  Impact on other 
  Impact on  comprehensive Impact on comprehensive 
 Carrying profit income profit income 
 amount +/- 1% +/- 1% +/- 10% +/- 10%

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 30 June 2013 

Cash and cash equivalents 22,631 227 (227) - - - - - -

Trade and other receivables 191,392 - - - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest rate swaps 998 1,000 (1,000) 5,085 (3,089) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contracts 153 - - - - - - (21) 370

Derivatives-fwd borrowings1 9,407 - - 41,727 (22,912) - - - -

Total financial assets 224,581 1,227 (1,227) 46,812 (26,001) - - (21) 370

Trade and other payables 193,506 - - - - - - - -

Borrowings2 6,188,044 (1,150) 1,150 - - - - - -

Derivatives-fwd borrowings1 478 - - 4,705 (5,662) - - - -

Total financial liabilities 6,382,028 (1,150) 1,150 4,705 (5,662) - - - -

1 The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s forward domestic borrowing commitments of $1,160.0 
million (30 June 2013: $1,060.0 million). These commitments are entered into to effectively lock-in the interest rate on all or part 
of known future borrowing obligations, and are recognised as derivative financial instruments in the periods between entering 
into the forward lending agreements and draw downs of the loan principal.

2 The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s floating rate borrowings of $855.0 million (30 June 2013: 
$115.5 million) and variable rate working capital borrowings of $13.0 million (30 June 2013: nil). The majority of Western Power’s 
borrowings are at fixed interest rates as allowable under the Board approved treasury management framework.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Western Power if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
discharge its contractual obligation. The maximum exposure to credit risk for Western Power is best represented by the 
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in the balance sheet as at the reporting date (refer to note 5).  

Western Power generally provides credit on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed otherwise. Credit risk 
is actively managed through the use of credit ratings, approved policies and monthly reporting to the Board. Western Power 
manages the quality of financial assets and its concentrations of credit risk by reference to external credit ratings, where 
available, or to historic information on counterparty default rates. Unconditional bank guarantees or cash deposits are also 
obtained as security where necessary.

Impaired trade receivables

Western Power uses a formalised process to manage the collection of debts which allows appropriate legal action to be 
taken where necessary. Where there is objective evidence trade receivables will not be collectable, a provision for 
impairment is recognised (refer to note 7). Objective evidence includes known financial difficulty of the debtor, and default or 
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue).

As at 30 June 2014, trade receivables with a nominal value of $1.180 million (30 June 2013: $1.296 million) were recognised 
as impaired and fully provided for in the ‘provision for impairment of trade receivables’. The creation and release of this 
provision is recognised in ‘other expenses’ in the statement of comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the provision 
are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables during the reporting year are presented below: 

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

At 1 July  1,296 1,130

Charged in the reporting year:

Provision for impairment recognised during the reporting year  1,083 652

  1,083 652

Receivables previously provided for and written off during the reporting year as uncollectable (1,199) (486)

At 30 June  1,180 1,296

There is no collateral security in place in respect of these amounts.  

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

As at 30 June 2014, trade receivables of $5.879 million (30 June 2013: $6.751 million) were past due but not impaired. 
These receivables relate to a number of independent customers for which there is no recent history of default and hence, 
no provision of impairment is deemed necessary.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is presented below: 

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

between 1-59 days  2,178 2,713

between 60-89 days   311 268

more than 90 days  3,390 3,770

  5,879 6,751

(d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk Western Power will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities as 
they fall due. Western Power is governed by the treasury management framework which requires active management of 
cash and ensures adequate facilities are in place to satisfy ongoing funding requirements. This includes maintaining a 
minimum cash balance and adequate working capital for immediate needs, and managing the debt portfolio within maturity 
guidelines to mitigate refinancing risk. 

Financing arrangements

Western Power has in place a borrowing facility with the WATC with a limit of $10.0 billion (30 June 2013: $7.0 billion). 
Included in this, is a working capital facility limit of $100.0 million that can be drawn down to meet short-term financing 
needs. The usage of the WATC borrowings facility is governed by Western Power’s Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 
agreed with the Minister for Energy. 

The unused portion of Western Power’s borrowings facility with the WATC and the maximum amount of borrowings 
permitted by the Department of Treasury (DoT) for the reporting year are presented in the following table. 
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 WATC facility Permitted by DoT

  2014 2013 2014 2013 
 Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Borrowings limits  10,000,000 7,000,000 6,933,500 6,133,890

Used portion of borrowings limits:

Domestic working capital facility 14 (13,000) - (13,000) -

Domestic currency loans  14 (6,812,047) (6,133,644) (6,812,047) (6,133,644)

  (6,825,047) (6,133,644) (6,825,047) (6,133,644)

Unused portion of borrowings limits  3,174,953 866,356 108,453 246

The maximum amount of borrowings permitted by the DoT for the reporting year ended 30 June 2015 is currently $7.5 
billion (30 June 2014 limit: currently $6.9 billion).

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following table presents Western Power’s contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest 
payments and excluding the impact of netting arrangements. The table also indicates the periods in which the cash flows 
associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedges are expected to occur. 

      Total 
    Between one Later contractual  
   Within one  and five than five cash flows Carrying 
   year years years (undiscounted) amount 
  Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 30 June 2014 

Interest rate swaps  9 

Net settled   555 480 - 1,035 861

Forward exchange contracts  9 

(Inflow)   (175) - - (175) 

Outflow   179 - - 179 5

Forward domestic borrowing commitments1 9 - - - - 37,166

Total derivative financial liabilities   559 480 - 1,039 38,032

Trade and other payables:  11 243,107 6,392 5,184 254,683 250,965

Trade payables and accruals   193,291 - - 193,291 193,291

Other payables   46,939 - - 46,939 46,939

Contributory extension scheme   2,877 6,392 5,184 14,453 10,735

Borrowings:  14 1,303,341 5,667,415 2,467,965 9,438,721 6,833,314

Working capital facility   13,148 - - 13,148 13,148

Fixed rate borrowings   737,091 3,223,010 136,423 4,096,524 3,577,660

Fixed to floating rate borrowings   44,665 676,191 616,446 1,337,302 1,106,177

Floating rate notes   294,772 544,913 108,855 948,540 858,134

CPI linked debt   202,233 618,287 757,360 1,577,880 1,278,195

Forward domestic borrowing commitments1 14(b) 11,432 605,014 848,881 1,465,327 -

Total non-derivatives financial liabilities  1,546,448 5,673,807 2,473,149 9,693,404 7,084,279
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      Total 
    Between one Later contractual  
   Within one  and five than five cash flows Carrying 
   year years years (undiscounted) amount 
  Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 30 June 2013 

Forward domestic borrowing commitments1 9 - - - - 478

Total derivative financial liabilities   - - - - 478

Trade and other payables:  11 184,953 5,929 7,330 198,212 193,506

Trade payables and accruals   130,458 - - 130,458 130,458

Other payables   52,092 - - 52,092 52,092

Contributory extension scheme   2,403 5,929 7,330 15,662 10,956

Borrowings:  14 1,738,905 4,676,208 2,162,789 8,577,902 6,188,044

Fixed rate borrowings   1,459,731 3,185,647 269,762 4,915,140 4,303,488

Fixed to floating rate borrowings   19,900 588,339 - 608,239 500,595

Floating rate notes   4,027 34,004 114,053 152,084 115,935

CPI linked debt   254,108 518,624 859,893 1,632,625 1,268,026

Forward domestic borrowing commitments1 14(b) 1,139 349,594 919,081 1,269,814 -

Total non-derivatives financial liabilities  1,923,858 4,682,137 2,170,119 8,776,114 6,381,550

1 There are no contractual cash flows for forward domestic borrowing commitments in the period between entering into the 

forward lending agreement and draw down of the loan principal. The contractual cash flows on draw down of the agreed loan 

principal are presented in the borrowings section of this table.

Borrowing facilities are in Australian dollars. Funds may be drawn at any time with varying maturities. The average maturity 
as at 30 June 2014 was 3.2 years (30 June 2013: 3.4 years). 

25 CONTINGENCIES

Western Power’s policy is to disclose details of contingencies where the probability of future receipts/payments is not 
considered remote, as well as details of contingencies, which although considered remote, the directors consider should be 
disclosed.

(a) Contingent assets

Western Power did not have any contingent assets at 30 June 2014.

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contaminated sites

Western Power has reported 106 sites to the Department of Environment Regulation (DER) as either known or suspected to 
be contaminated under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (WA). Until Western Power conducts an investigation to determine 
the presence and scope of contamination, assess the risk and agree with the DER the need and criteria for remediation, 
Western Power is unable to accurately quantify its remediation liabilities. Western Power has developed and maintains a 
contaminated sites program to manage the identification and remediation of suspected contaminated sites and continues 
to investigate, monitor and remediate sites using a risk based methodology which is consistent with DER guidelines.
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Other 

Western Power is currently party to, or is potentially affected by a number of legal claims. Until proceedings relating to these 
claims are finalised uncertainty exists regarding the impact, if any, on the operations of Western Power. 

In the opinion of the directors, provisions or further disclosures are not required in respect of these contingencies, as it is 
not probable a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required, or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

26 COMMITMENTS

(a) Lease commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases 

Total commitments to minimum lease payments, including properties, information technology equipment and motor 
vehicles, in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are presented below: 

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Payable within one year  4,999 5,514

Payable later than one year but not later than five years  7,365 5,441

Payable later than five years  769 1,315

  13,133 12,270

(b) Capital commitments

Total capital commitments contracted for at the reporting date, including major transmission and distribution capital 
expenditure associated with asset replacements, regulatory compliance upgrades and the state underground power 
project, but not recognised as liabilities are presented below: 

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Payable within one year  221,855 347,084

Payable later than one year but not later than five years  17,285 55,189

  239,140 402,273

(c) Other expenditure commitments

The State Government requires Western Power, by notice published in the gazette, to make the following annual payments 
into the tariff equalisation fund for the benefit of the Regional Power Corporation. The 2014 reported commitments were 
gazetted on 4 April 2014. Western Power made payments of $209.0 million into the fund during the year ended 30 June 
2014 (30 June 2013: $154.0 million) (refer to note 3(c)).

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Payable within one year  136,000 209,000

Payable later than one year but not later than five years  231,000 588,000

  367,000 797,000
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27 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in note 25 of these financial statements and the ‘likely developments and expected results 
of operations’ section of the directors’ report included in this financial report, there are no matters or circumstances that 
have arisen in the period between the end of the reporting year and the date of this report that are likely, in the opinion of 
the directors, to affect significantly the operations of Western Power, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of 
Western Power in subsequent financial years.

28 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

During the reporting year the following fees were paid, or due and payable, for services provided by the Office of the Auditor 
General:

  2014 2013 
  $’000 $’000

Audit services

Annual audit of financial statements and other assurance services  (424) (369)

  (424) (369)

29 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to the reporting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
accounting standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) (including 
Australian interpretations) and Schedule 4 of the Act. On operation of the Act, Schedule 4 was aligned and cross referenced 
to the relevant sections of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Western Power has been classified to be a not-for-profit entity and accordingly applies the not-for-profit elections available 
in the Australian accounting standards where applicable.

New and amended accounting standards adopted

Western Power has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the annual reporting year 
commencing 1 July 2013:

• AASB 13 Fair value measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) arising 
from AASB 13 

• AASB 119 Employee benefits (September 2011) and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to AAS arising from AASB 119 
(September 2011)

The adoption of AASB 119 has resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustment to the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements. The adoption of AASB 13 has resulted in changes in accounting policies and affected note disclosures 
only. All changes in accounting policies and adjustments are explained and summarised in note 30. 
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New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following accounting standard and amendments effective after the 30 June 2014 reporting period have been identified 
as those which may impact Western Power in the reporting year of initial application.

Title and topic Issued
Effective date to 
Western Power

Impact to Western 
Power in 2014 
reporting year

AASB 9 Financial Instruments, AASB 2009-11 Amendments 
to AAS arising from AASB 9, AASB 2010-7 Amendments to 
AAS arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) and AASB 
2012-6 Amendments to AAS - mandatory effective date of 
AASB 9 and transition disclosures

December 
2009

1 July 2017* No impact
• Addresses the classification, measurement and 

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
(Since December 2013, also sets out new rules for hedge 
accounting).

• The standard is not applicable to Western Power until the 
reporting year ended 30 June 2018*. The full impact, if 
any, is still to be assessed.

* The mandatory application of this standard may be further deferred once the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 

has agreed on a mandatory date for the equivalent international standard

Accrual accounting and historical cost convention 

These financial statements are prepared on the accrual accounting basis and in accordance with the historical cost 
convention, except for the following:

• derivative financial instruments measured at fair value

• certain provisions and employee benefit liabilities measured at present value, less the fair value of any defined benefit  
plan assets

Comparatives

Where appropriate, comparative amounts have been re-presented and re-classified to ensure comparability with the current 
reporting year.

Going concern

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. Western Power has reasonable grounds to believe it is 
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable, considering the unused portion of the available facility 
agreement (refer to note 24(d)) and the forecasted net profits and positive operating cash flows in 2015.

Working capital

At 30 June 2014, Western Power reported a working capital deficit of $40.817 million (30 June 2013: $2.396 million deficit). 
Current liabilities include deferred income relating to developer and customer contributions to the value of $85.047 million 
(30 June 2013: $106.592 million) which usually do not require an outflow of cash resources. When these amounts are 
excluded, working capital shows current assets exceeding current liabilities by $44.230 million (30 June 2013: $104.196 
million).
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(b) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation 
currency

This financial report is presented in 
Australian dollars, which is the 
functional and presentation currency of 
Western Power. All financial information 
presented in Australian dollars has 
been rounded to the nearest thousand 
($’000) unless otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in currency other than the 
functional currency of Western Power 
are translated into the functional 
currency using the exchange rates at 
the dates of the transactions. At each 
reporting date, monetary assets and 
liabilities that are denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at 
closing exchange rates. All foreign 
currency translation differences are 
recognised on a net basis in profit or 
loss, except when deferred in equity 
for translation differences of qualifying 
cash flow hedges, to the extent the 
hedge is effective.

(c) Revenue and income 
recognition

Revenues are recognised to the extent 
it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to Western Power and 
the revenue can be measured reliably. 
It is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, 
net of the amount of goods and 
services tax. The specific recognition 
criteria for Western Power’s network 
services revenue, and developer and 
customer contributions is further 
described in notes 2(b) and 2(c) 
respectively.

Other income

Western Power receives other income 
from the provision of services 
incidental to the core activities of the 
business. Other income is recognised 
when the service is provided.

(d) Income tax equivalent 

Western Power is exempt from the 
Commonwealth of Australia’s Income 
Tax Assessment Acts but makes 
income tax equivalent payments to the 
Western Australian State Government. 
The calculation of the liability in respect 
of these taxes is governed by the 
Income Tax Administration Acts and 
the National Taxation Equivalent 
Regime guidelines as agreed by the 
State Government.

The income tax equivalent expense for 
the reporting year comprises current 
and deferred tax equivalents. Income 
tax equivalent is recognised in profit or 
loss, except to the extent that it relates 
to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in 
equity.

Current tax equivalent is the expected 
tax equivalent receivable/payable on 
the taxable income for the reporting 
year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantially enacted at the reporting 
date, and any adjustment to the tax 
equivalent in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax equivalent is provided 
using the liability method, providing for 
temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax 
equivalent is measured at the tax rates 
expected to be applied to the 
temporary differences when they 
reverse, based on the laws that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted 
at the reporting date.

A deferred tax equivalent asset is 
recognised only to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the asset 
can be utilised. Deferred tax equivalent 
assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting year and are reduced to the 
extent it is no longer probable that the 

related tax equivalent benefit will be 
realised.

Deferred tax equivalent assets and 
liabilities are offset when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax equivalent assets and 
liabilities, and when the deferred tax 
equivalent balances relate to the same 
taxation authority.

(e) Leases

Leases where the lessee retains 
substantially all the risks and benefits 
of ownership of the asset are classified 
as finance leases. As at 30 June 2014, 
Western Power does not have any 
finance leases (30 June 2013: nil).

Leases where the lessor retains 
substantially all the risks and benefits 
of ownership of the asset are classified 
as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases net of any 
incentives received from the lessor, are 
expensed to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

(f) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, Western Power 
considers any indicators of impairment 
to its assets, that is, events or changes 
in circumstances that indicate the 
carrying value may not be fully 
recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of an 
asset’s value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. For non-financial 
assets, value in use is determined 
using the depreciated replacement 
cost of the asset. Impairment losses 
are recognised in profit or loss and, 
where material, are disclosed 
separately.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
cash at bank, deposits held at call with 
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financial instruments and other 
short-term deposits that have an 
original maturity of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts.

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially 
recognised at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised 
cost less provision for impairment. 
Receivables are classified as current 
assets unless collection is not 
expected for more than 12 months 
after the reporting date.

Impairment

Trade and other receivables are 
determined to be impaired when 
objective evidence exists that Western 
Power will not be able to collect all 
amounts due. The amount impaired is 
the difference between the carrying 
value of the receivable and the net 
present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. Cash flows 
relating to short term receivables are 
not discounted if the effect of 
discounting would be immaterial. 
Amounts impaired are recognised in 
profit or loss.

When a trade receivable for which an 
impairment provision has been 
recognised becomes uncollectible in a 
subsequent reporting year it is written 
off against the provision account. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
written off are credited to profit or loss.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. The cost 
of inventories is based on the weighted 
average cost principle, and includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring 
inventories and bringing them to their 
existing location and condition. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling 

price in the ordinary course of 
business, less the estimated 
completion and selling costs.

(j) Derivative and hedging 
activities

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are 
initially recognised at fair value on the 
date a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently remeasured 
to their fair value at each reporting 
date. The valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value are further 
described in note 17(b). Changes in the 
fair value of derivative financial 
instruments are included in profit or 
loss to the extent that hedge 
accounting is not applied.

Financial instruments are derecognised 
when Western Power no longer 
controls the contractual rights that 
comprise the financial instrument.

Hedge accounting

Western Power designates certain 
derivatives as hedges of highly 
probable forecast transactions (cash 
flow hedges). The fair value of hedging 
derivatives is classified as current 
unless the remaining maturity of the 
hedging relationship is not expected 
for more than 12 months after the 
reporting date. 

On entering into a hedge relationship, 
Western Power determines whether 
hedge accounting is applied. Where 
hedge accounting applies, Western 
Power formally designates and 
documents the relationship between 
the hedging instrument and the 
hedged item, as well as its risk 
management objective and strategy for 
undertaking the hedge. Western Power 
also documents its assessment, both 
at the inception of the hedge and on 
an ongoing basis, of whether the 
derivative that is used in the hedging 
transaction has been and will continue 

to be highly effective in offsetting 
changes in fair value or cash flows of 
the hedged item.

For all derivative transactions 
designated as a cash flow hedge, the 
portion of gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument that is determined to be an 
effective hedge is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the hedging reserve. 
The ineffective portion is recognised in 
profit or loss immediately. When the 
cash flows occur, the amount that has 
been deferred to equity is transferred 
either to the carrying value of the asset, 
in the case of non-financial assets, or 
re-classified to profit or loss as 
appropriate in the same period as the 
hedged item affects the profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or 
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge 
no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative gain or 
loss existing in equity at that time 
remains in equity and is recognised 
when the forecast transaction is 
ultimately recognised in profit or loss. 
When a forecast transaction is no 
longer expected to occur, the 
cumulative gain or loss that was 
reported in equity is immediately 
re-classified to profit or loss.

(k) Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Property, plant and equipment is 
recognised at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses. Historical cost is 
determined as the fair value of the 
asset at the date of acquisition or 
construction and includes all 
expenditure directly attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of the 
asset. Cost may also include transfers 
from equity of any gains or losses on 
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign 
currency purchases of property, plant 
and equipment.
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The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and labour, and any other costs, directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Gifted network assets are recognised at fair value at the point 
the assets are energised.

Subsequent costs are included in property, plant and equipment only when it is probable the item associated with the cost 
will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amounts of items replaced are 
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance plus minor capital assets less than $5,000 are expensed to profit and loss 
during the reporting year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives presented below, making 
allowances where appropriate for residual values.

Category of plant, property and 
equipment Years

Category of plant, property 
and equipment Years

Substations, transformers, poles and cables 45 - 50 Communications 7 - 10

Buildings 40 Fleet 5 - 10

Meters, streetlights 20 - 25 Computer hardware 4

Pole reinforcements, smart meters 15 Leasehold improvements life of lease

Furniture and fittings, refurbishments, other 
plant & equipment

10

Property, plant and equipment received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation is depreciated over their residual 
useful economic lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land, easements and assets in the course of construction.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually, and 
adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a change in accounting 
estimate.

Rehabilitation costs

Upon recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of the item includes the present value of the 
anticipated costs of rehabilitating the site on which it is located.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are determined by 
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

(l) Intangible assets

Cost

Intangible assets represent identifiable capitalised software costs and intellectual property, and are recognised at historical 
cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in intangible 
assets only when it is probable the item associated with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be 
measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are recognised only if an asset is created that can be identified; it is probable that the 
asset created will generate future economic benefits; and that the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
Where no internally generated asset can be recognised the development expenditure is expensed to profit or loss.
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Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives presented below, making 
allowances where appropriate for residual values.

Category of intangible assets Years

Intellectual property 3 - 25

Software (major developments/enhancements) 5 - 10

Software (minor purchases/enhancements) 2.5

The residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods of intangible assets are reviewed annually, and adjusted as 
appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a change in accounting estimate.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Trade and 
other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.

Forward domestic borrowing commitments

Forward borrowing commitments are recognised as derivative financial instruments in the period between entering into the 
forward lending agreement and draw down of the loan principal. Once the loan is drawn down, the principal is accounted 
for at fair value like any other borrowing. Any fair value gain or loss recognised in the hedging reserve is re-classified to profit 
or loss over the term of the loan.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Western Power has an agreement with the lender that allows 
refinancing of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. This includes where a forward domestic borrowing 
commitment exists that replaces the existing borrowing on the date of maturity, and where this extends the maturity of the 
original borrowing to greater than 12 months after the reporting date.

(o) Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (being assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) form part of the cost of that asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Capitalised borrowings costs are included in interest paid in the statement of cash flows.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Western Power has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects 
the market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.
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Rehabilitation costs

A provision for site rehabilitation costs is 
recognised when there is either a legal 
or constructive obligation to rehabilitate 
a site; the land is contaminated; it is 
probable a rehabilitation expense will 
be incurred; and the costs can be 
reliably estimated. The amount of the 
provision for future rehabilitation costs 
is capitalised into the cost of the 
related plant, property and equipment, 
and depreciated over the expected 
useful life.

(q) Employee benefits

Wages and salaries

Liabilities arising in respect of 
employee benefits that are expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months of 
the reporting date are measured at 
their nominal amount based on 
remuneration rates that are expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. The liability for wages and 
salaries is recognised in other 
payables. The liability for all other 
short-term employee benefits is 
recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits.

Annual and long service leave

The liabilities arising in respect of 
annual and long service leave are not 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months of the reporting date. They are 
recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits and measured as 
the present value of expected future 
payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to 
the reporting date using the projected 
unit credit method. Consideration is 
given to factors including the expected 
future wages and salaries levels, 
experience of employee departures 
and settlement dates. Expected future 
payments are discounted using the 
Commonwealth Bond rates whose 
terms most closely match the terms of 

the related liabilities. Independent 
actuarial valuations are carried out at 
each reporting date. Remeasurements 
as a result of experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as 
current liabilities in the balance sheet 
where there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months 
after the reporting date, regardless of 
when actual settlement is expected to 
occur. 

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when 
employment is terminated before the 
normal retirement date, or when an 
employee accepts voluntary 
redundancy in exchange for those 
benefits. Western Power recognises 
termination benefits at the earlier of the 
following dates: (i) when Western 
Power can no longer withdraw the 
offer of those benefits; and (ii) when 
Western Power recognises the costs 
for a restructuring that is within the 
scope of AASB 137 Provisions, 
contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets and involves the payment of 
termination benefits.

In the case of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancies, the 
termination benefits are measured 
based on the number of employees 
expected to accept the offer. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period are 
discounted to present value.

(r) Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of Western Power are 
entitled to benefits upon retirement, 
disability or death from any number of 
superannuation plans, which may 
include a defined contribution section, 
a defined benefit section, or both.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a 
post-employment benefit plan under 
which Western Power pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and 
will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further amounts. 
Contributions to defined contribution 
plans are recognised as an expense as 
they become payable.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-
employment benefit other than a 
defined contribution plan. A liability or 
asset in respect of defined benefit 
superannuation plans is recognised in 
the balance sheet, and is measured 
separately for each plan as the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation 
in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date 
less the fair value of any plan assets at 
that date.

The present value of the defined 
benefit superannuation plans is based 
upon expected future payments and is 
calculated using discounted cash flows 
consistent with the projected unit 
credit method. Consideration is given 
to factors including the expected future 
wages and salaries level, experience of 
employee departures and periods of 
service. Expected future payments are 
discounted using the Commonwealth 
Bond rates whose terms most closely 
match the terms of the related 
liabilities. Independent actuarial 
valuations are carried out at each 
reporting date.

The annual net defined benefit interest 
expense/income is determined by 
applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligation 
at the beginning of the reporting period 
to the net defined benefit liability/asset. 
It is recognised immediately along with 
all other defined benefit plan expenses 
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including past services costs, in 
employee related expenses in profit  
or loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses 
arising from experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions 
(including changes in the bond rate) 
are recognised in the period in which 
they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in 
the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of 
defined benefit obligations resulting 
from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised immediately in profit or 
loss as past service costs.

(s) Contributed equity

Contributed equity represents the initial 
and subsequent contributions made 
by Western Power’s owner, the 
Western Australian State Government. 
No shares have been allotted.

(t) Dividends

Dividends are provided for in the 
reporting year in which the dividends 
recommended by the Board are 
accepted by the Minister for Energy, 
with the concurrence of the Treasurer 
of Western Australia.

(u) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are 
recognised net of the amount of 
associated GST, unless the GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority. In this case it is 
recognised as part of the cost 
acquisition of the asset or as part of 
the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated 
inclusive of the amount of GST 
receivable or payable. The net amount 
of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority is included in 
other receivables or payables in the 
balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross 
basis. The GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing or financing 
activities which are recoverable from, 
or payable to the taxation authority, are 
presented as operating cash flows.

30 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

AASB 119 Employee benefits

The adoption of the revised AASB 119 
Employee benefits resulted in the 
following accounting policy changes to 
Western Power:

(a) Retirement benefit obligations

The amount of the ‘net defined benefit 
expense’ recognised in profit or loss 
under the revised standard is higher 
than the amount that would have been 
recognised under the old rules, with an 
equal and opposite change to the 
amount recognised as a 
‘remeasurement’ in other 
comprehensive income. This is the 
result of the replacement of the 
expected return on plan assets and 
separate interest expense with a net 
defined benefit interest expense. The 
net impact on total comprehensive 
income is nil and there is no 
adjustment to the amounts recognised 
on the face of the balance sheet or 
statement of cash flows from this 
change.

The revised standard does not 
mandate where to present 
remeasurements in equity, hence 
Western Power has chosen to retain 
the previous policy of recognising 
directly in retained earnings.

Impact of changes in accounting 
policies

Impact on prior years

As the revised standard must be 
adopted retrospectively, the change in 
accounting policy has been recognised 
at the beginning of the earliest period 
presented (1 July 2012) and the 
statement of comprehensive income 
restated for the comparative period. It 
resulted in a $0.061 million increase in 
the ‘net defined benefit expense’ 
recognised in the 30 June 2013 profit 
or loss and an offsetting $0.061 million 
increase in the ‘net remeasurements of 
retirement benefit obligations’ 
recognised in other comprehensive 
income. The offsetting income taxation 
equivalent is $0.018 million.
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The following table summarises the retrospective adjustments on adoption of the revised AASB 119 Employee benefits. Line 
items that were not affected by the change have not been included. As a result the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot 
be recalculated from the numbers provided.

 2013 Change 2013 
 reported in policy restated 
Statement of comprehensive income (extract) $’000 $’000 $’000

Expenses

Employee related expenses (226,566) (61) (226,627)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 269,480 (61) 269,419

Income tax equivalent expense (78,103) 18 (78,085)

Profit for the reporting year 191,377 (43) 191,334

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be re-classified to profit and loss:

Net remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations 269 43 312

Total other comprehensive income for the reporting year,  
net of tax equivalent 7,248 43 7,291

Total comprehensive income for the reporting year 198,625 - 198,625

The change in accounting policy had no impact on net assets or cash flows at 30 June 2013.

Impact on current year

There is no impact to the current reporting year for the change in accounting policy. This is because the defined benefit plan 
previously funded by Western Power (and administered by AustralianSuper) was closed with effect from 1 October 2013.

(b) Annual leave benefits

As Western Power does not expect all annual leave obligations to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date, these 
are now classified as long-term employee benefits in their entirety. This did change the measurement of these obligations, 
as the whole obligation is now measured on a discounted basis and no longer split into a short-term and a long-term 
portion. The impact of this change however, is immaterial since the majority of the leave is still expected to be taken within a 
short period after the end of the reporting period.

Re-classification of comparatives

For disclosure purposes, annual leave obligations are now recognised in the ‘provision for employee benefits’ and not in 
‘other payables’. The net impact on total current liabilities is nil and there is no adjustment to the amounts recognised on the 
face of the statements of comprehensive income or cash flows from this re-classification. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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The following table summarises the nil impact on ‘current liabilities’ in the balance sheet for the re-classification.

 2013 Change in 2013 
 reported disclosure reclassified 
Balance sheet (extract) $’000 $’000 $’000

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 223,798 (37,978) 185,820

Provisions 36,455 37,978 74,433

Net impact to current liabilities 260,253 - 260,253

AASB 13 Fair value measurement

The adoption of the new AASB 13 Fair value measurement resulted in the following accounting policy change to Western 
Power: 

(c) Fair value measurement

AASB 13 Fair value measurement aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of 
fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements to use across Australian accounting 
standards. The standard does not extend the use of fair value accounting but provides guidance on how it should be 
applied where its use is already required or permitted by other Australian accounting standards. 

Previously the fair value of financial liabilities (including derivatives) was measured on the basis that the financial liability 
would be settled or extinguished with the counterparty. The adoption of AASB 13 has clarified that fair value is the exit price 
notion, and as such, the fair value of financial liabilities should be determined based on a transfer value to a third party 
market participant. The impact of this change was considered immaterial on transition to AASB 13 and for the reporting 
year ended 30 June 2014.
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In the directors’ opinion:

(a)  The financial statements and notes comply with Australian accounting standards, other authoritative pronouncements 
and Schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA)

(b)  The financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial position of Western Power as at 30 June 
2014 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date

(c)  There are reasonable grounds to believe that Western Power will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due 
and payable

The directors’ have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2014 pursuant to Western Power’s corporate governance statement.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

A Mulgrew J Cahill 
Board Chair Board Deputy Chair 

2 September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Parliament of Western Australia

ELECTRICITY NETWORKS CORPORATION (TRADING AS WESTERN POWER)

I have audited the financial report of the Electricity Networks Corporation. The financial report comprises the Balance Sheet 
as at 30 June 2014, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and the Directors’ Declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the Electricity Networks Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, and for 
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based 
on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require 
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Corporation’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor General Act 2006 and 
Australian Auditing Standards, and other relevant ethical requirements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Opinion

In my opinion, the financial report of the Electricity Networks Corporation is in accordance with schedule 4 of the Electricity 
Corporations Act 2005, including:

(a)  giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year 
ended on that date; and

(b)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the Electricity Networks Corporation for the year ended 30 June 2014 
included on the Corporation’s website. The Corporation’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Corporation’s 
website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Corporation’s website. The auditor’s report refers only 
to the financial report described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been 
hyperlinked to/from this financial report. If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from 
publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information 
contained in this website version of the financial report.

COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
3 September 2014
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Availability of this report in other formats

Copies of this report are available from our website westernpower.com.au  
or you can call us on 13 10 87 to request it in an alternative format.

Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power

ABN 18 540 492 861

Contact details:

T  13 10 87 
TTY  1800 13 13 51 
TIS  13 14 50 
F  (08) 9225 2660 
E enquiry@westernpower.com.au 
W  westernpower.com.au
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